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The franchisor is offering a franchise license for the operation of a business that will provide pet boarding, daycare,
grooming salon and spa services under the name “PREPPY PET.”

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Preppy Pet 2.5 Franchise is between $151,250 and $267,400.
This includes $19,900 as an Initial Franchise Fee. A Preppy Pet 2.5 business typically operates in a location of 2,500
to 3,000 square feet of space (but may contain more) and is limited to a maximum of 72 kennels.

Our Original Preppy Pet Franchise is operated in a larger location, typically between 3,000 and 6,000 square feet
without kennel capacity limitations and is available for an Initial Franchise Fee of $34,500 and your initial investment
will be between $207,600 and $353,350.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain
English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure
document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor
or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has
verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the
availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Jerry Gore at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida
32806 and 407-420-1060.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document alone to
understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure document to
an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your
mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which can help you
understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact
the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, D.C. 20580.
You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc .gov  for additional information. Call your state agency or visit
your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

THE ISSUE DATE OF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS AUGUST 14, 2025.

http://www.ftc.gov


How to Use this Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some Questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find
more information:   

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20.

How much will I need to
invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Preppy Pet franchise in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Preppy
Pet franchisee?

Item 20 lists current and former franchisees. You can
contact them to ask about their experiences.

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should look
for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.



What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

         

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you
are losing money. 

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business. 

Suppl i er restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own. 

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market,
and your hours of operation. 

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have
to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your
franchise business. 

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors. 

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends
the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a
registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit D. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your
franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.



Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by

mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in Florida. Out of state mediation,

arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for

disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor

in Florida than in your own state. 

2. There may be other risks concerning this franchise.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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1. THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “We” means PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC., the
franchisor. "You" means the person(s) who buy(s) the franchise. Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. is a Florida
Corporation chartered on November 3, 2005. It began operations on January 1, 2006. Our principal place of
business is at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida 32806  (Telephone Number 407-420-1060) 

We have one affiliate, Preppy Pet Inc. also based at our Orlando headquarters. It was founded by Jerry and
Melanie Gore in September 2003 and operates a pet boarding facility under the Preppy Pet name offering
daycare, salon and spa services from 55 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida. This business provides the basis
for the business plan that is shared with franchisees under the Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc Franchise Agreement.

Our agent for service of process in Florida is Jerry Gore. Refer to the Schedule of State Agencies attached for
information on the agent for service of process in other states where we may be registered.
    
We grant franchises the right to market, sell and deliver upscale pet boarding services including daycare,
grooming salon and spa services primarily serving dogs, but offering limited services to cats and other pets.
Franchisees will market and operate their businesses under the trade name “Preppy Pet” for which we have
received a Trademark on the United States Patent and Trademark Office Principal Register.

We charge a different initial franchise fee for franchised locations that will be less than 3,000 square feet, which
we call our Preppy Pet 2.5 locations, than we do for what we call our Original Preppy Pet locations, which will
be in the range of 3,000 to 6,000 square feet. The cost to open the larger locations also is higher than the smaller
2.5 locations, all as shown in detail in Item 7 in this Disclosure Document. 

Franchisees operate from an approved location within their protected territory that has been decorated to our
standards, and they must utilize products from our approved list of vendors. Our website identifies and describes
the benefits of our services and lists each of our operating units. Licensees generate revenues by boarding pets
overnight and providing daycare services in climate controlled suites and play areas, utilizing our name,
operating systems, and procedures.

We will teach you our methods for managing your business and assist you in implementing our system of
marketing Preppy Pet services. We will assist you in selecting a suitable territory and a suitable facility within
that area. We will train you in methods to complete remodeling, decorating and equipping your facility. We will
provide procedures for marketing your services to local pet owners; for obtaining referrals; for recruiting and for
teaching your staff to promote and deliver the services offered by the franchise network. 
        
We will provide start-up marketing assistance in your city; and conduct research and analysis of new services and
products for you to offer in the future. We award you the right to use our name and logo in your market for
soliciting business, in advertising, signage, brochures, letterhead and business cards. We will also add your
franchise’s contact information to our web site to help you gain name recognition in your community and
generate sales leads.
    
We have been offering franchises since January 16, 2006. We have not granted franchises in any other lines of
business. We, or our affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc. may, in the future, operate Preppy Pet businesses in various
markets that we do not currently service, but we will not encroach on the territory of a franchisee. We currently
operate the website, www.preppypet.com which promotes our services through the internet. We will add new
franchisees’ contact information to this website when they are trained and prepared to service their markets.

There are no known state or federal regulations specific to the operation of a Preppy Pet care services facility.
You will, however, be required to comply with numerous government regulations affecting the operation of your
franchise and your relationship with employees, including local zoning regulations, minimum wage requirements,
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overtime, working conditions and citizenship requirements. There may be other laws applicable to your business
and we urge you to make further inquiries of your advisors and local government officials about such regulation.

You will compete with other businesses offering similar services. The pet care services industry is experiencing
growth and a proliferation of businesses (and individuals) that offer alternative services and products that are
locally, regionally or nationally owned. The industry typically experiences increased revenue fluctuations in line
with holiday and vacation schedules.

2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
     
President, Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer: Jerry Gore

Since September, 2003, Mr. Gore has served as President of our affiliate Preppy Pet, Inc, where he is assisted by
his wife and son. He assumed his current position with Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. at inception in October 2005.

Sales and Operations VP: Melanie Gore

Ms. Gore has served as Vice President of Preppy Pet Inc. since its founding in September 2003 and she assumed
her current position with Preppy Pet Franchises Inc. at its formation in October 2005.

Operations Manager: Danny Gore

From 2003 until the present Mr. Gore has been employed by our affiliate. He became our Franchise Sales
Manager in March 2009 and took on his current role in 2015.

3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Disclosure Document.

4. BANKRUPTCY
    
No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

5. INITIAL FEES

Franchisees pay an Initial Franchise Fee ranging from $19,900 to $34,500 for a license to operate one Preppy Pet
franchise at a specific site within a protected geographic territory for a term of 15 years. We have two offerings
available based on the size of your facility, the traffic count at your business, the demographics of your territory,
and other factors. The smaller franchise is called Preppy Pet 2.5 and franchises occupy sites with 2,500 to 3,000
square feet of space and have a maximum of 72 kennels. Original Preppy Pet franchises occupy sites with over
3,000 square feet of space and do not have a limit on the number of kennels they utilize. Initial Franchise Fees are
$19,900 for a 2.5 Franchise and $34,500 for an Original Franchise. The royalties and other fees are the same for
the two types of locations, as the only difference is the size of the facility and their capacity of kennels. Payment
must be made in a lump sum at the time you sign your Franchise Agreement and it is considered earned and non-
refundable at that time. These Fees are expected to be uniform in 2025.

If you are a qualified veteran of the United States Armed Forces, and you purchase an Original Preppy Pet
franchise, your franchise fee will be ten percent  (10%) less than the then current full Initial Franchise Fee in
effect at the time of signing your first Franchise Agreement. A qualified veteran is defined as a former member of
the United States Armed Forces who was Honorably Discharged as indicated on Form DD214.  The Form DD214
must be presented to us prior to the purchase of the franchise to qualify for the discount.

7



There is no discount available for the purchase of a Preppy Pet 2.5 franchise.

During the calendar year ended, December 31, 2023 one new franchise was sold and it opened early in 2024.

If you purchase a Preppy Pet 2.5 Franchise, you may expand to become a Original Preppy Pet Franchise by
paying the difference between your Initial Franchise Fee and the Fee charged new franchisees for a Original
Preppy Pet Franchise at the time you wish to expand. During the term of your license, additional franchises to
operate kennels under the Preppy Pet mark may be purchased, if available, and you are in full compliance with all
agreements you have with us, at a rate of seventy-five percent (75%) of the then current Initial Franchise Fee
being charged new franchisees. 

6. OTHER FEES

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Royalty1 6.5% of Total Gross Receipts
A minimum monthly Royalty of $500 will
commence on the first anniversary of your
business’s opening.5

Payable Monthly
by the tenth day
of the following
month based on
the Royalty
Report you must
submit. Subject to
$50 late fee plus
1½% per month
interest if not
received within 7
days of the due
date.2

Total Gross
receipts
includes all
revenue
collected by
the franchise.3

Gross receipts
does not
include sales
nor use taxes.
You must
permit us to
debit your
bank account
for Royalties
due.

Advertising
Fees1

Up to 2% of Monthly Sales We may in the
future require you
to pay up to 2%
of your Monthly
Sales into a
National
Advertising Fund.
These funds will
be payable
Monthly by the
tenth day of the
following month,
based on the
Advertising Fund
Report that you
must submit.2

We will
utilize the 
National
Advertising
Fund to
promote the
system’s 
services and
to produce
advertising
media for use
in local
markets.4

We will debit
your bank
account for
Advertising
Fees due.
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Local
Advertising1

We require that you spend at least an
additional 5% of your monthly sales on local
advertising.

When billed by
local vendors.

You will pay
your vendors
directly.

Additional
Franchise
Management
Training1

$750 per person is the current charge for the
training of employees in excess of the two
provided for in your initial franchise fee.

2 weeks prior to
beginning of
training.

We train 2
persons free.
See Item 11.

Transfer1 If you sell your franchise to someone else,
there will be a one-time Transfer Fee of
Twenty-Five Percent (25%) of the then-
current Initial Franchise Fee or $10,000,
whichever is higher, charged to the
purchaser.

Prior to
consummation of
transfer.

Payable when
you sell your
franchise and
it includes 2
seats for
Franchise
Management
Training.
There is no
charge if the
franchise is
transferred to
a corporation
or LLC which
you own.

Renewal Fee1 Ten Percent (10%) of the Initial Franchise
Fee being charged new franchisees at the
time of the renewal will be due us when you
renew your Franchise License at the end of
its 15 year term.

30 days before
renewal (at the
end of your 15-
year license).

Payable to us.

Audit1 If we feel it is necessary to audit your books
and an underpayment of 3% or more is
discovered, in addition to any under
payment, you must pay us the cost of the
audit plus 18% annual interest and 15% of
the underpaid royalty.2

3 days after
billing.

Payable by
you only if an
audit shows
an under-
payment of at
least 3% of
gross receipts
for any month
or if we
performed the
audit due to
your failure to
report
revenues.

1 All fees are imposed by and are payable to us. All fees are non-refundable.

2 You must permit us to debit your checking account or charge a credit card for payment of your
Royalty and Advertising Fees based upon reports that you must fax or email to headquarters each
month. Interest begins from the date of any underpayment. 

9



3 You must pay royalties on all funds collected by your business. In a case where you are unable to
collect from a customer, no royalty will be due on that amount.

4 When 25 franchises are open for business, we have the right to institute a National Advertising Fund
and require that you and all franchisees pay up to 2% of monthly sales into the fund. We will
administer the Preppy Pet Ad Fund with the guidance of a committee consisting of Franchise Owners
and our representatives. Such a program will not be initiated earlier than when 25 franchises exist,
unless 75% of the Franchisees then in operation agree that the program should commence when a
minimum of 10 franchises exist. At such time, if ever, that an Advertising Fund is implemented, we
will contribute two percent (2%) (or any lower system-wide percentage rate which is identical to that
paid by franchisees) of our company-owned, or affiliate-owned, Preppy Pet operating units’ revenues
to the fund. We will notify all franchisees 90 days before implementing an Advertising Fund and
collecting these fees. (See Section 11, Paragraph 8 for further details on the proposed Advertising
Fund.)

5 Beginning in the thirteenth month or your franchise’s opening you must pay a minimum monthly
Royalty of $500, regardless of the Total Gross Receipts collected for the period. However, if the
average monthly Royalty paid during the preceding six (6) months exceeds the minimum Royalty due
by 10% or more, no minimum will be imposed for that month, regardless of your total gross receipts
during the current month. 
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7.  ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

           PREPPY PET 2.5 FRANCHISE
  YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure Amount
Method of 
Payment When Due

To Whom
Payment is 
to be Made

Initial Franchise Fee1 $19,900 Lump Sum At signing of
Franchise
Agreement 

Preppy Pet
Franchises

Travel & Living
Expenses while
Training

$600 to
$3,500

As Incurred During Training Airlines, Hotels,
& Restaurants

Leasehold
Improvements2 

$8,000 to
$27,500

As Incurred Before Opening Local Vendors

Equipment, Supplies &
Signage3

$74,800 to
$100,100

As Incurred Before Opening Preppy Pet
Franchises or
other Vendors

Start Up Promotion4 $8,000 to
$13,500

As Incurred Before Opening Vendors

Miscellaneous 
Opening Costs5 

$2,250 to
$3,000 

As Incurred Before Opening Vendors

Security and Lease
Deposits6

$8,000 to
$15,000

Before
Opening

Before Opening Landlord

Additional Funds7 $32,500 to
$85,000

As Incurred During the initial 
6-month period

Vendors

TOTALS $151,2501 to
$267,400

Notes:

  1 See Item 5 for details on when reductions may apply.
 

  2 A suitable facility for a Preppy Pet 2.5 franchised business will include 2,500 to 3,000
square feet of leased or owned space. You may lease or purchase a larger space than
3,000 square feet, however, your franchise will be limited to a maximum of 72
kennels. You may grow, and upgrade to a Preppy Pet Original Franchise at any time
by paying the difference between the amount you paid for your Preppy Pet 2.5
franchise and the then current amount being charged for a Original Preppy Pet
Franchise. You will incur leasehold improvement costs and you will pay ongoing
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rental fees for the space. If you purchase the property where you operate your
franchise, these expenses will not apply.

   3 Equipment includes items in the following chart:

PC Computer with a minimum of 500 gigabytes SSD (or
hard drive) and a processor running at 3.0 gHz or more,
and 8 Gigabytes Ram.

$1,100 to $1,650

Office Equipment, Supplies, and Signage $4,400 to $7,700

Accounting and Kennel Management Software $1,650 to $2,200

Kennel Equipment and Supplies $11,000 to $14,300

Kennel Package $55,000 to $66,000

Kennel Package Shipping $1,650 to $2,750

Kennel On-Site Set-Up (Optional) $0 to $5,500

TOTALS $74,800 to $100,100

4 Start Up Promotion. We have developed advertising campaigns that will introduce your
franchise’s  boarding, daycare and grooming services to your marketplace. You will arrange
with various vendors to execute these programs 30 days prior to and 90 to 180 days after
opening. Your investment in Start Up Advertising will vary, depending on the capacity of
your facility and your short-term goals.

5 Miscellaneous Opening Costs include costs of general liability insurance; office supplies;
 printed forms; the installation of two telephone lines; government license fees and

incorporation.

6 The figure for “Security Deposits” assumes that you will pay the first and last
month’s rent and typical utility deposits when you sign your lease.

7 Additional Funds estimates the cash or credit lines you should have available when
you open your business to cover any expenses that exceed revenues during the first
three to six months. These expenses include payments for your staff, but not you. You
should plan on covering personal expenses without making draws on the business for
six months to one year from the date of opening. These figures are estimates and we
cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting the business.
Your costs will depend on factors such as: how much you follow our methods and
procedures; your management skill, experience and business acumen; local economic
conditions; the local market for your Preppy Pet services; the prevailing pay rates;
competition; and the sales level reached during the initial period.

8 To create these estimates of how much you may spend during the time from signing
your Franchise Agreement until you reach break even, we relied on our management
team's experience in the pet care services business to compile these estimates. You
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should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making a
decision to purchase the franchise. 

 ORIGINAL PREPPY PET FRANCHISE
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure Amount
Method of 
Payment When Due

To Whom
Payment is to be

Made

Initial Franchise Fee1 $34,500 Lump Sum At signing of
Franchise
Agreement 

Preppy Pet
Franchises

Travel & Living
Expenses while
Training

$600 to
$3,000

As Incurred During Training Airlines, Hotels,
& Restaurants

Leasehold
Improvements2 

$11,000 to
$45,000

As Incurred Before Opening Local Vendors

Equipment, Supplies &
Signage3

$87,000 to
$135,500

As Incurred Before Opening Preppy Pet
Franchises
or other Vendors

Start Up Promotion4 $8,750 to
$15,000

As Incurred Before Opening Vendors

Miscellaneous 
Opening Costs5 

$2,750 to
$3,850 

As Incurred Before Opening Vendors

Security and Lease
Deposits6

$11,000 to
$22,000

Before
Opening

Before Opening Landlord

Additional Funds7 $44,000 to
$95,000

As Incurred During the initial 
6-month period

Vendors

TOTALS $207,6001 to
$353,350

Notes:

  1 See Item 5 for details on when reductions may apply.
 

  2 A suitable facility for our Original Preppy Pet franchised business will include 3,000
to 6,000 square feet of leased space. You may incur leasehold improvement costs and
you will pay ongoing rental fees for the space. 
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3 Equipment includes items in the following chart:

PC Computer with a minimum of 500 gigabytes SSD (or
hard drive) and a processor running at 3.0 gHz or more,
and 8 Gigabytes Ram.

$1,000 to $1,500

Office Equipment, Supplies and Signage $6,500 to $10,000

Accounting and Kennel Management Software $1,500 to $2,000

Kennel Equipment and Supplies $15,000 to $19,000

Kennel Package $60,000 to $80,000

Kennel Package Shipping $3,000 to $4,000

Kennel On-Site Set-Up (Optional) $0 to $7,000

TOTALS $87,000 to $123,500

4 Start Up Promotion. We have developed advertising campaigns that will introduce your
franchise’s  boarding, daycare and grooming services to your marketplace. You will arrange
with various vendors to execute these programs 30 days prior to and 90 to 180 days after
opening. Your investment in Start Up Advertising will vary, depending on the capacity of
your facility and your short-term goals.

5 Miscellaneous Opening Costs include costs of general liability insurance; office supplies;
 printed forms; the installation of two telephone lines; government license fees and

incorporation.

6 The figure for “Security Deposits” assumes that you will pay the first and last
month’s rent and typical utility deposits when you sign your lease. These expenses
may not apply if you purchase the property your franchise occupies.

7 Additional Funds estimates the cash or credit lines you should have available when
you open your business to cover any expenses that exceed revenues during the first
three to six months. These expenses include payments for your staff, but not you. You
should plan on covering personal expenses without making draws on the business for
six months to one year from the date of opening. These figures are estimates and we
cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting the business.
Your costs will depend on factors such as: how much you follow our methods and
procedures; your management skill, experience and business acumen; local economic
conditions; the local market for your Preppy Pet services; the prevailing pay rates;
competition; and the sales level reached during the initial period.

8 To create these estimates of how much you may spend during the time from signing
your Franchise Agreement until you reach break even, we relied on our management
team's experience in the pet care services business to compile these estimates. You
should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making a
decision to purchase the franchise. 

14



8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

All Preppy Pet franchisees offer the same menu of services. Any materials you utilize in providing services or
products sold by your Preppy Pet franchise must be approved by us. All purchases must be purchased from our
approved vendors. We may make occasional sales to you if a supplier is unable to provide prompt delivery of
products. There are no purchasing arrangements with any suppliers for the benefit of our franchisees.

We estimate that less than 50% of your opening purchases will be purchased from us, our affiliates or our
approved vendors and we anticipate that no more than 10% of your future purchases will be made from us or
our affiliates.

You must also purchase flyers, business cards, signs, marketing materials and supplies in accordance with
quality standards set forth in the Operations Manual. These specifications include standards for quality,
reliability and delivery. These products may be offered by us but may be purchased from any vendor of your
choosing.

During 2024, none of our Revenues came from the sale of Kennel Suites to new franchisees, nor did our
affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc, make any sales nor collect any fees from our Franchisees for purchases made. There
are no other suppliers or vendors in which our officers own an interest. There are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives. We do not provide material benefits to you based on your purchase of particular products or
services or your use of particular suppliers. Our Kennel Suites and the kennel management software that you
will use to manage your business are the two items that you must use to comply with your Franchise
Agreement. We supply supplemental telephone support for the software that would not be available with other
vendors’ products. We provide a list of suggested vendors for your build-out equipment and materials but if
you find products with similar specifications, you may use them. If you wish to find alternative kennel suites,
we will provide you with the minimum standards necessary, review a sample and provide a letter of
acceptance or rejection based on this study within 30 days of your submission.

9. FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

THIS TABLE LISTS YOUR PRINCIPAL OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE FRANCHISE AND
OTHER AGREEMENTS. IT WILL HELP YOU FIND MORE DETAILED INFORMATION
ABOUT YOUR OBLIGATION IN THESE AGREEMENTS AND IN OTHER ITEMS OF THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Obligation
Section

in Agreement
Disclosure

Document Item

a. Site selection and
acquisition/lease

Sections 2 & 4D of
Franchise Agreement 

Items 7 & 11

b. Pre-opening
purchase/leases

Sections 4 & 5 of
Franchise Agreement

Items 6 & 7

c. Site development and
other pre-opening
requirements

Sections 2, 4 & 5 of
Franchise Agreement

Items 7 & 11

d. Initial and ongoing
training

Sections 4A & 5A of
Franchise Agreement

Item 11

e. Opening Sections 2, 5B, & 5C of
Franchise Agreement

Item 5 & 11D
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Obligation
Section

in Agreement
Disclosure

Document Item

f. Fees Section 3 & 6 of Franchise
Agreement

Items 5 & 6

g. Compliance with
standards and
policies/Operating Manual

Section 5 of Franchise
Agreement

Item 11

h. Trademarks and
proprietary information

Section 5C of Franchise
Agreement

Items 13 & 14

i. Restrictions on products/
services offered

Section 5C 
of Franchise Agreement

Items 8 & 16

j. Warranty and customer
service requirements

Section 5B, 5C & 5E of
Franchise Agreement 

Item 11

k. Territorial development
and sales quotas

Section 6A of Franchise
Agreement

Item 12

l. Ongoing product/service
purchases

Section 5E of Franchise
Agreement

Items 8 & 16

m. Maintenance, appearance
and remodeling
requirements

Section 5K of Franchise
Agreement

Item 11

n. Insurance Section 5I of Franchise
Agreement

Items 7 & 11

o. Advertising Section 5G of Franchise
Agreement

Items 6 & 7

p. Indemnification Section 7 of Franchise
Agreement

Item 13

q. Owner's participation/
management/staffing

Section 5B of Franchise
Agreement

Item 15

r. Records and reports Sections 5H, 6A & 6B of
Franchise Agreement

Item 6 

s. Inspections and audits Section 5H of Franchise
Agreement

Item 6

t. Transfer Section 11 of Franchise
Agreement

Items 6 & 17

u. Renewal Section 8 of Franchise
Agreement

Items 6 & 17

v. Post-termination
obligations

Section 10 of Franchise
Agreement

Item 17
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Obligation
Section

in Agreement
Disclosure

Document Item

w. Non-competition
covenants

Section 15 & Addendum
B of Franchise Agreement

Item 17

x. Dispute resolution Sections 18 & 20 of
Franchise Agreement

Item 17

Y. Other (describe) NA NA

  
10. FINANCING

  
We do not offer financing or guarantees of any other costs or leases associated with opening or operating your
franchise. 

11. FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. is not required to provide you with any
assistance.

A. Prior to Opening:
1 We will assign your Protected Territory and protect you from having another franchisee, us,

or our affiliates, open a Preppy Pet business within your Protected Territory. (Franchise
Agreement - Paragraph 2 and Addenda A and C)

2 We will provide a one week class called Preppy Pet Academy to train you and one other
person at or near our Orlando headquarters or at another location that we select. This training
is usually scheduled to occur two or three weeks prior to your Grand Opening. This time-
frame may be adjusted based on your specific circumstances. For purchasers of a Resale,
training will be at the sold location or nearby and schedules may vary. (Franchise Agreement -
Paragraph 4 Sections A, B and D)

3 Shortly after signing your Franchise License, we will forward our Site Selection and Build
Out Manual to guide you in finding and remodeling a facility for your Preppy Pet franchise.
We will train you in its use by phone and the internet. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4
Sections A, B and D)
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The training will include information on the following topics:

TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject
Hours of

Classroom
Training

Hours of
On-the-

Job
Training

Location

Industry Overview, Entrepreneurship, Your
Facilities, Profit Centers, Equipment,
Human Resources 

3 2 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Kennel Set-Up, Maintenance, Cleaning,
Repairs & Replacement

0 4 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Marketing & Sales 4 0 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Animal Care–Feeding, Medications &
Documentation, Animal Handling–Exercise,
Daycare, Rotation, Baths, Drying,
Pedicures, Bandanas, Perfume

0 4 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Business Controls–Budgets, Computing,
Compliance, Government Forms

4 0 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Dog Breeds
Office Procedures–Check-In, Check-Out

0 4 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Software Training-Admittance/Departure 4 8 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Preppy Pet Academy Final Exam
Review and Retraining, Graduation

3 0 Preppy Pet
Orlando*

Suite Layout & Set-up–Phone Training &
Support–Pricing, Services, Contracts,
Software

0 4 Phone
Training

Quick Books–Chart of Account Set-Up 0 4 Phone
Training

Search Engine Marketing–Setting Up
Marketing Campaigns

0 4 Phone
Training 

The cost of this training is included in your Initial Franchise Fee but you must pay the travel and living
expenses for yourself and or your Manager) for the 5 days you will spend learning our system. 

*Training occurs at, or near our Headquarters in Orlando or at another suitable location of our choosing. 

If you purchase an existing franchise, you will receive specific training from the selling franchisee and
typically only train at Headquarters or at the Franchisor’s choice location for 2 or 3 days. We customize the
training for the purchasers of existing units based on your needs and the availability of the seller. 
There are no additional required training programs or refresher courses.
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B. During the operation of the franchised business, we will:

1 Provide your unit’s contact information on our website to assist prospects in contacting your
franchise. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4F)

2 Maintain a telephone advisory service to provide a prompt response to your sales, operational,
administrative and management questions regarding the operation of your franchise.
(Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4A, (ii))

3 Identify new services and products and train you in methods for implementing them in your
business. We will also provide you with information about developments in the industry that
may impact your business. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4B & 4C).  

4 Lend you a copy of our Operations Manual and Site Selection and Build Out Manual which
contain mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and procedures. This manual is
confidential and remains our property. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4B). The table of
contents of our current Operations Manual follows this section. This manual currently
consists of approximately 135 pages. We will also lend you a copy of our affiliate’s Employee
Handbook that you must change to meet local needs and state laws and then share with your
employees.

5 When a sufficient quantity of franchises are operating, we may hold annual conferences to
discuss improvements in the Preppy Pet system, sales and pricing techniques, improved
operating techniques, quality control, advertising programs and accounting. We may or may
not charge you a conference fee but you must pay all your travel and living expenses. These
elective conferences may be held at our Orlando headquarters or at other locations of our
choosing. (Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4B)

6 We may, from time-to-time, develop advertising and marketing materials for use in your
territory. You will receive samples of these items at no charge. If you want additional copies
you must pay us or other vendors for them. You may develop advertising materials for your
own use, at your own cost. We must approve these materials in writing in advance of their
use. Your franchise agreement requires that you spend at least 5% of your franchise unit’s
sales in local marketing. In addition, in the future, we may require that you and all franchisees
pay up to 2% of monthly sales into a National Advertising Fund. The Preppy Pet Ad Fund
will be administered by us but we will seek the guidance of a committee consisting of
Franchise Owners and our representatives. Each year that the fund is active, a compilation of
its financial activities will be prepared by an independent CPA and shared with all
franchisees. In addition, any advertising funds not spent in the year collected will remain in
the fund to be expended in future years. Such a program will not be initiated earlier than when
25 franchises exist, unless 75% of the Franchises then in operation agree that the program
should commence when a minimum of 10 franchises exist. At such time, if ever, that an
Advertising Fund is implemented, we will contribute two percent (2%) (or any lower system-
wide percentage rate which is identical to that paid by franchisees) of our company-owned or
affiliated company-owned Preppy Pet units’ revenues to the fund. (Franchise Agreement -
Paragraph 4E). No part of the Advertising Fund will be used to solicit new franchise sales.  

You will be required to establish and maintain GoogleAd and Bing Ad marketing programs
 for both Pay-Per-Click and Organic ad listings.
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B. Computer Purchases

You are required to have a computer for developing a database of your clients, scheduling your
appointments, maintaining communications over the Internet and to produce your accounting records.
Your system and its software must properly communicate with our systems to permit report
submission and to access the Internet for communicating with us. We retain the right to access your
computer to review scheduling and accounting details within your Quickbooks or Kennel management
software or other software that you may utilize.

You will need a Windows-Based Computer with a minimum of a 500 gigabytes SSD (or hard drive)
and a processor running at 3.0 gHz or more and 8 Gigabytes of Ram. You will also need to purchase
the kennel management software package that we specify. While we have researched the products
available and are confident in our selection, we reserve the right to require utilization of a new
software solution in the future. We estimate the cost of this purchase to be between $1,000 and $1,500
or you may be able to purchase monthly subscriptions for the required software. We estimate that your
costs to maintain and upgrade the hardware and software to be approximately $1,000 per year.

C. Site Selection and Opening

We anticipate that franchisees will typically open their units within 6 months after they sign a
franchise agreement. This schedule will be adjusted to match your needs based on the time consumed
as you locate, negotiate a lease and complete remodeling of your business. You must obtain our
approval of your site based on the standards that we will share with you during your training. We will
assist you in the site selection process and we reserve the sole right of final review and consent to any
location of your kennel. We use available demographic information to help you evaluate the site and
the area in which it is located. In addition, we may withhold our consent if we feel that the costs, term,
renewal terms or stipulations could be detrimental to your success as a franchisee. Our final review
and consent to the location of your center is not a guarantee that a Preppy Pet business can be
successfully operated there or anywhere else.

The factors that affect the time to open your unit may include your ability to obtain a lease, financing,
construction or building permit delays, zoning and local ordinances, weather conditions, shortages,
and delayed delivery of equipment. There is a requirement that you open your franchise within 180
days of signing your Franchise Agreement, unless you receive a written extension of this time.
(Franchise Agreement - Paragraph 4 Section D). We will consider an extension if we believe that you
have been acting diligently to secure a site and get your business open or if your opening is delayed by
factors beyond your control.

D. Insurance and Indemnification

You must maintain adequate insurance and indemnity coverage throughout the term of your
Franchise Agreement and any extension thereof as mandated by our Operations Manuals. You must
also indemnify, or reimburse us for, any losses or expenses we incur as a result of your actions or
inaction. You must obtain coverages provided by a carrier with an A.M. Best rating of A or higher,
and in connection therewith to identify us as a named insured to the extent of our interest. (Franchise
Agreement - Paragraph 5 Section I) 

Prior to opening your business, you must deliver to us certificates or policies evidencing that your
insurance is in full force and effect, and each year during the term of this Agreement, you must furnish
premium receipts or other satisfactory evidence that such policies have continued in effect. Should
you fail to maintain the required insurance, or furnish proof thereof, we have the option to obtain such
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insurance for you at your sole cost. You must promptly notify us of any and all claims under said
policies of insurance against your franchise, us and/or our employees or agents of either.

E. Refurbishment, Remodel or Replace

You must maintain the appearance of your care services facility and keep its equipment in good
working order. Each five (5) year anniversary you are required to remodel the facility to the then 
current standards. The equipment may be either refurbished or replaced. If, upon inspection, the
facility and equipment have not been maintained to standards, we may notify you in writing that you
must bring the facility and equipment up to the then current standards within one hundred twenty
days.  

12. TERRITORY   

You will receive an Exclusive Territory providing a buffer around your kennel ensuring that no other Preppy
Pet boarding center will be located closer than 3 to 10 miles from your facility depending on local
demographics and population density. Your territory will be defined by zip codes, county or municipal
boundaries, geographic or highway boundaries, or logical marketing areas. You are to operate only one Preppy
Pet facility from a location that we have approved within your Exclusive Territory as defined in your
Franchise Agreement. If you purchase a Preppy Pet 2.5 Franchise, you are restricted to a maximum of 72
kennels. As a Original Preppy Pet Franchise, there are no restrictions on the number of kennels you may have
at your facility. You are permitted to accept guests from any area, regardless of the availability of a center that
is closer to their residence, however, you may not, unless advertising with other Preppy Pet Franchisees, target
customers with direct mail marketing nor advertise in telephone, internet or similar directories that target areas
outside your territory nor may you establish mailing addresses for your Preppy Pet business that would lead
others to believe that you offer services outside of your Exclusive Territory. There are no contractual
restrictions preventing us from soliciting or accepting orders within your Exclusive Territory, but given the pet
boarding nature of the business, there is no way for us to fulfill any order in your Territory since we will not
have a location there.

If you purchase a Preppy Pet 2.5 Franchise, you may expand to become a Original Preppy Pet Franchise by
paying the difference between your Initial Franchise Fee and the Fee charged new franchisees for a Original
Preppy Pet Franchise at the time you wish to expand. During the term of your franchise, you may purchase
rights to open another Preppy Pet facility in another territory, if a suitable territory is available, for a fee of
seventy-five (75) percent of the rate being charged new franchisees at the time of your purchase. This is only
available if you are in compliance with the terms of the franchise agreement.

You do not have to generate a minimum level of gross receipts to maintain your Exclusive Territory, although
there will be a minimum Royalty due beginning in the 13th month of operations as described above in Section
6. If you desire to relocate your franchised business, you can apply to us for the right to do so, and we will
evaluate the proposed location by the same criteria we use in evaluating your original location, plus the new
location must be located within your Exclusive Territory. In addition, and provided that you are in substantial
compliance with the terms of your franchise agreement, we will may allow you to purchase additional
territories for additional location, depending on availability.

You are required in Section 5B of your Franchise Agreement to complete your initial training and commence
business operations within 180 days after signing your Franchise Agreement. Failure to do so constitutes a
breach of your Franchise Agreement, however, we will grant you a 90-day extension of this time upon written
receipt of your request explaining you efforts to date in finding a suitable site.  
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13. TRADEMARKS
   
We grant you the right to operate one pet care services facility, and to market your services under the name
“Preppy Pet” within a specific geographic territory. You may also use current and future trademarks and
service marks we register to identify your business and its products and services. Our affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc.
has granted us the rights to three Service Marks: Preppy Pet which was registered with the United States
Patent and Trademark Office Principal Register on January 21, 2014, and granted Registration Number
4470040. This Registration covers our pet boarding and grooming services. Preppy Pet, Inc also owns the
Trademark for the graphics of our Preppy Pet mascot under Registration Number 5702056 granted March 19,
2019. Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc also owns the Trademark covering our motto, “Pet Stays Your Way” under
Registration Number 5750433 granted May 14, 2019. Our agreements with Preppy Pet, Inc. and Preppy Pet
Franchises, Inc. are in writing, cannot be terminated, and give us the perpetual rights to use the name in
franchising.

You must follow our rules when you use these marks. You cannot use our name or mark as part of your
corporate (or other entity) name or with modifying words, designs or symbols except for those which we
license to you. You may not use Preppy Pet’s registered name in connection with the sale of an unauthorized
product or service or in a manner not authorized in writing by us.

Your conduct on the Internet, including without limitation, your use of the Marks on the Internet and in
domain names for the Internet, is subject to the provisions of the Franchise Agreement. We reserve the right to
establish and modify, from time to time, rules which will govern your conduct and use of the Internet in
connection with your Preppy Pet franchise business, and you must agree to abide by such rules. At the present
time, only Preppy Pet is permitted to maintain a website promoting the franchise system. Your rights to use
the Marks and our Business System on the Internet will terminate when the Franchise Agreement terminates
or expires.

You must notify us immediately if you learn about an infringement of, or challenge to your use of any of our
trademarks. We will take the action we think appropriate.

You must modify or discontinue the use of a service mark or trademark if we modify or discontinue it. If this
happens, we will reimburse you for your tangible costs of compliance that have been pre-approved by us in
excess of $5,000 (i.e., changing signs). You must not directly or indirectly contest our right to our trademarks,
trade secrets or business techniques that are part of our business.

We do not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Preppy Pet trade or service
mark(s). No agreements limit our right to use or license the use of this trademark.

There are no currently effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial
and Appeal Board, the Trademark Administrator of any State or any court, pending infringement, opposition
or cancellation, or pending material litigation involving the principal trademark. 
  

14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
  
You may use the proprietary information in our Operations Manual described in Item 11. Although we have
not filed an application for a copyright registration for the Operations Manual, we claim a copyright, and the
information is proprietary. Item 11 describes limitations on the use of this manual by you and your employees.
You must also promptly tell us if you learn about unauthorized use of this proprietary information. We are not
obligated to take any action but will respond to this information as we think appropriate.   

22



We do not own any patents and there are no applications pending for patent rights.
  

  15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS
  

We do not require that you personally supervise the franchised business. The business must be directly
supervised, on a day to day basis, by a manager who has successfully completed our training program. The
manager may not have an interest or business relationship with any of our business competitors. The
manager need not have an ownership interest in a corporate or partnership-run franchise. The manager must
sign a written agreement to maintain confidentiality of the trade secrets described in Item 14 and to conform
with the covenants not to compete described in Item 17.

Each individual who owns a 5% or greater interest in the franchise entity, who has not signed the Franchise
Agreement, must sign a Guarantee assuming and agreeing to discharge all obligations of the "Franchisee"
under the Franchise Agreement. (See Addendum D to the Franchise Agreement). Depending on your net
worth, we may require that your spouse sign the personal guarantee as well.

16. RESTRICTIONS OF WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL
  
We require you to offer and sell only those services that we have approved (see Item 9) and that you only
utilize products approved by us. You are required to offer all the products and services as defined in the
Operations Manual. There is no limitation of our right to modify the list of approved services that you must
provide.

17. RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.

You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision
   Section in

    Franchise or  
   other Agreement

Summary

a. Length of the franchise term Section 8 The term is 15 years.
b. Renewal or extension of the
term

Section 8 If you are in good standing you can renew for
additional 15 year terms.

c. Requirements for franchisee
to renew or extend

Section 8 Sign new agreement and pay renewal fee.

d. Termination by franchisee Sections 3 & 9A Not Permitted
e. Termination by franchisor
without cause

Section 9B Not Permitted

f. Termination by franchisor
with cause

Section 9C We can terminate only if you default.

g. "Cause" defined–curable
defaults

Section 9C Curable defaults: failure to open your franchise
within 180 days of signing your Franchise
Agreement, non-payment of fees, non-reporting,
failure to meet Franchise Agreement standards,
non-compliance with local law, poor business
practices (as defined), failure to obtain non-
compete agreements from managers, operating from
non-approved site, offering services in another
name or outside of protected territory.
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Provision
   Section in

    Franchise or  
   other Agreement

Summary

h. "Cause" defined–non-curable
defaults

Section 9C Non-curable defaults: conviction of felony,
repeated defaults (even if cured), abandonment,
trademark misuse, unapproved transfers,
bankruptcy, insolvency, or false statements on
applications or reports.

i. Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

Section 10 Obligations include complete de-identification and
payment of amounts due (see also r, below).

j. Assignment of contract by
franchisor

Section 11C We may assign our rights.

k. "Transfer" by franchisee–
defined

Section 11B Includes transfer of contract, or assets, or
ownership change

l. Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Section 11B We have the right to approve all transfers but will
not unreasonably withhold approval.

m. Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

Section 11B New franchisee qualifies, transfer fee paid,
purchase agreement approved, training arranged,
release signed by you, all fees owed by you paid,
and current agreement signed by new franchisee
(also see r, below).

n. Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire franchisee’s
business

Section 11E Right of first refusal is reserved by us. We will
have 10 days to notify you of our intention to meet
the terms of a buyer and 45 days to complete a
purchase.

o. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s business

None None exists

p. Death or disability of
franchisee

   Sections 11 
and 11B

Your estate and/or beneficiaries can inherit your
rights as long as a qualified manager runs your
franchise.

q. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

Section 15 No involvement in competing business anywhere in
the U.S., Canada, or Mexico.

r. Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is terminated
or expires

Section 15 You may not own nor manage a competing business
for 2 years within 50 miles of your protected
territory (including after assignment).

s. Modification of the agreement Section 16 No modifications generally unless agreed to in
writing by both parties but Operations Manual is
subject to change.

t. Integration/merger clause Section 16 Only the terms of the franchise agreement are
binding (subject to state law). Any other promises
may not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution by
mediation or arbitration

Section 18 Except for certain claims, all disputes must be first
mediated, then arbitrated in Orlando, Florida.

v. Choice of forum Section 20 Litigation must be in the United States District
Court for the Middle District of Florida, Orlando
Division, or the State Court in Orange County,
Florida.

w. Choice of law Section 20 Florida law applies.
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18. PUBLIC FIGURES
  
We do not use any celebrities or public figures to promote our franchise to the public at large or to those
considering purchasing our franchises.

19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS
  
The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying: or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a
particular location or under particular circumstances.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to you upon
reasonable request.

Some outlets have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance that
you’ll earn as much.

The information below is based upon the performance of the eighteen franchisees in the system, all of which
began operations before January 1, 2024 and reported their sales for 12 months during the calendar 2024
year. One franchisee, who is experiencing health issues, did not report complete sales for the year.

The foll    owing chart gives a break-down of how this income was spread throughout the network. The chart
reflects Gross Revenues less any sales taxes or refunds.

Historic Franchise Unit Revenues
      

Annual Revenues 2022 (19 Units)  2023 (19 Units) 2024 (18 Units)

Average $ 460,239 $ 454,783 $426,879

Median $ 426,383 $ 460,972 $424,016

Low $ 219,243 $ 211,030 $182,579

High $ 732,792 $ 714,247 $670,341

Our affiliate, Preppy Pet Inc. was founded by Jerry and Melanie Gore in September 2003. Their Revenues
for 2022 were $519,520; and 2023 Revenues were $500,840 and 2024 Revenues were $479,726 in their
Orlando, FL business. These Revenues are not included in the system-wide Revenue charts above as the
affiliate is not a franchise. This business is substantially similar to the franchises that we offer.

Other than the preceding data, Preppy Pet Franchises, does not make any financial performance
representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations
either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we, or the seller, may provide
you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting Jerry
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Gore at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida 32806, 407-420-1060, the Federal Trade Commission,
and the appropriate state regulatory agencies. 

        20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

 TABLE NO. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary

For Years 2022 to 2024

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start
of the Year

Outlets at the End
of the Year

Net Change

Franchised
2022 19 19 0

2023 19 19 0

2024 19 19 0

Company-Owned*
2022 1 1 0

2023 1 1 0

2024 1 1 0

Total Outlets*
2022 20 20 0

2023 20 20 0

2024 20 20 0

*This business is owned by our affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc., that operates a boarding kennel under the
name Preppy Pet at 55 West Michigan St., Orlando, Florida.
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ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners 

(other than the Franchisor)
For Years 2022 to 2024

State Year Number of
Transfers

MA
2022 1

2023 1

2024 0

Florida
2022 1

2023 1

2024 0

Oklahoma
2022 1

2023  1

2024 0

Total
2022 3

2023  3

2024 0

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets

For Years 2022 to 2024

State Year Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Termina-
tions

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by

Franchisor

Ceased
Operations-

Other
Reasons

Outlets
at End
of the
Year

Arizona
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Florida
2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

2023 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

2024 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

Georgia
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
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State Year Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Termina-
tions

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by

Franchisor

Ceased
Operations-

Other
Reasons

Outlets
at End
of the
Year

Massachusetts
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

New York
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Ohio
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Oklahoma
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Pennsylvania
2022 2 0 0 0 0 1 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

South
Carolina

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Tennessee 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Texas
2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

Totals
2022 19 0 0 0 0 0 19

2023 19 0 0 0 0 0 19

2024 19 0 0 0 0 0 19

28



ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets*

For Years 2022 to 2024
State Year Outlets at

Start of Year
Outlets
Opened

Outlets
Reacquired 

From Franchisee

Outlets
Closed

Outlets Sold
to

Franchisee

Outlets at End 
of the Year

Florida
2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

Totals 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

*This kennel is owned and operated under the name Preppy Pet by our affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc.

An estimate of the total number of Franchises to be sold or granted during the one year period 
following the date of this disclosure document is outlined in the following chart.

ITEM 20 TABLE NO. 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2024

State
Franchise Agreements
Signed but Outlet Not

Opened

Projected New Franchised
Outlets in the Next Fiscal

Year

Projected New Company-Owned
Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year

Texas 1 2 0

Totals 1 2 0
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FRANCHISED UNITS OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023
ARIZONA Jason and Lana Romano 

4415 South Rural Road 
Tempe, AZ. 85282 
Phone 480-345-5522

FLORIDA Carol and Patrick Falcone
2022 Tally Road
Leesburg, FL 34748
Phone 352-702-3505

Yolanda and Tony Lopez
4045 Dow Rd, Ste 105 
Melbourne, FL 34934
Phone 321-242-2400

Patricia Tawney
13513 Prestige Place 
Tampa, FL 33635
Phone 813-852-BARK (2275)

Kara Crossway and Thomas Baylor
9140 W. College Point
Fort Myers, FL 33919
Phone 239-245-7648

Matty Franceschi
4180 Tamiami Trail North
Naples, FL 34103
Phone 239-776-7372

David “Tony” Kerr
3148 28th Street N 
St. Petersburg, FL 33713
Phone 727-256-9862

GEORGIA Frost and Carroll Hudson
2601 Manchester Expressway
Columbus, GA 31904
Phone 706-507-7677

MASSACHUSETTS Erica Mallozzi
147 John Fitch Hwy 
Fitchburg, MA 01420
Phone  978-345-0444

NEW YORK Jeffrey Oblas
233 W  RT 59 
Nanuet, NY 10954
Phone 845-501-7677

OHIO Phillip Russell
22223 Lorain Rd 
Fairview Park, OH 44126
Phone 440-827-6000

Pia Siqueira and Zane Russell
5787 Linworth Road 
Worthington, OH 43085
Phone 614-505-7906

OKLAHOMA            Renee & Michael Arzola 
2502 W. Gore Blvd.
Lawton, OK 73505

Phone 580-699-2727

PENNSYLVANIA Elaina and Ed Adelman 

605 Norristown Road

Warminster, PA 18974
Phone 215 443-7387

SOUTH CAROLINA   JoAnn Campbell & Kathleen Adams
111 Acres Dr.,

Ladson, SC 29456
Phone 843-553-3710

TENNESSEE  Jody & Dana Good
240 E. Main St., Suite C

Hendersonville, TN 37075

Phone 615-431-2140

TEXAS Nick Fox & Ann Knight
11920 Louetta Rd

Houston, TX 77070

Phone 832-698-4351

Laura & Phil Spiteri
21922 Bellaire Blvd Suite 100 

Richmond, TX 77407

Phone 281.762.7749 

Laura & Phil Spiteri
16150 Rippling Water
Houston, TX 77084
Phone 832-427-1457
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NO FRANCHISED UNITS CLOSED NOR WERE ANY SOLD BY A FRANCHISEE TO ANOTHER PARTY
DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

THE SELLERS’ CONTACT INFORMATION FOLLOWS:

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be 

disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

There were no franchisees whose franchise was, within the twelve-month period immediately preceding the
date of this Disclosure Document, terminated, canceled, not renewed or, who has, during the same time
period, otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, or
has any franchisee failed to communicate with us within the ten weeks prior to the date of application of this
registration. 

During the last three fiscal years, we have not signed any confidentiality clauses with any current or former
licensees or franchisees which would in any way restrict their ability to speak with you openly about their
experience with Preppy Pet Franchises.

There are no trademark specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system, nor are there
any independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be included in this disclosure document.          
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21. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

The company's Audited Financial Statements December 31, 2022, December 31, 2023, December 31, 2024
and Unaudited Interim Financial Statements for the 6 Months Ended June 30, 2025 are attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

22. CONTRACTS
  

Attached hereto are the following documents:

  EXHIBIT A -- Audited Financial Statements dated December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024 and  

    Unaudited Interim Financial Statements For the 6 Months Ending June 30, 2025.

EXHIBIT B -- Sample Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Provisions for General
 Managers

   EXHIBIT C -- Schedule of State Agencies

EXHIBIT D -- State-Specific Amendments

EXHIBIT E -- Operations Manuals Tables of Contents

  EXHIBIT F -- Franchise Agreement

  Addendum A -- Franchisee’s Protected Territory
  Addendum B -- Closing Acknowledgments 

Addendum C – Approved Location Acknowledgment
Addendum D – Guaranty
Addendum E – State Law Addendum
Addendum F – Bank Authorization Form
Addendum G – Collateral Assignment of Lease
Addendum H – Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings
Addendum  I – SBA Loan Agreement
Addendum  J – Bank Authorization Form

23 RECEIPT

The last two pages of this Disclosure Document are duplicate copies of our Receipt acknowledging that you
have received this Disclosure Document. You are required to sign each Receipt and return one copy to us at the
address on the cover of this Circular.
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EXHIBIT A TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc.
_______________________________________

Audited Financial Statements Dated

December 31, 2022
December 31, 2023
 December 31, 2024

 Unaudited Interim Financial Statements 
for the 6 Months Ending June 30, 2025

With respect to the June 30, 2025 financial statements, THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED
WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE
ADVISED THAT NO CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR

EXPRESSED HIS/HER OPINION WITH REGARD TO THE CONTENT OR FORM.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. 
Orlando, Florida 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. which comprise the 
balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, and the related statements of operations, changes in 
stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 and 
the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc.  as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, and the results of its operations 
and cash flows for years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
2023 and 2022 Financial Statements Restated  
 
As discussed in Note 4  to the financial statements, the 2023 and 2022 financial statements have been 
restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc.’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 





2024 2023

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and equivalents 84,703$           99,629$           
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 84,703             99,629             

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 3,226               4,909               

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 175,000           175,000           

TOTAL A                                            262,929$         279,538$         

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT):
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,708$             6,451$             
Non-refundable deferred franchise sales, current 14,098             14,098             
Current maturities of notes payable -                  -                  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 18,806             20,549             

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Non-refundable deferred franchise sales 87,246             101,636           

                          Note payable -               -               
TOTAL LIABILITIES 106,052           122,185           

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Common stock, $1 stated value, 1,000 shares 

authorized, issued and outstanding 1,000               1,000               
Additional paid-in capital 14,000             14,000             
Advances to related parties (639,508)         (569,372)         
Retained Earnings 781,385           711,725           

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 156,877           157,353           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND  
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 262,929$         279,538$         

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC
BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023 2022

REVENUES
Franchise fees 34,290$           22,328$           48,862$           
Royalty fees 461,956           501,947           493,100           
Other revenues 3,804               2,202               3,635               

TOTAL REVENUES 500,050           526,477           545,597           

COST OF SALES -                       -                       1,079               

GROSS PROFIT 500,050           526,477           544,518           

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative 167,190           170,630           170,584           
Payroll and related costs 163,310           144,686           149,032           
Rent expense 30,126             19,696             18,766             
Advertising expense 28,389             35,941             34,954             
Professional services 13,923             10,380             12,511             

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 402,938           381,333           385,847           

OPERATING INCOME 97,112             145,144           158,671           

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) -                       -                       (1,039)              

NET INCOME 97,112$           145,144$         157,632$         

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Additional Advances to Total
Shares Common Paid-In Related Retained Stockholders'

Outstanding Stock Capital Parties Earnings Equity

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2021 1,000               1,000$         14,000$       (501,568)$    567,117$     80,549$       

Net income -                   -               -               -               157,632       157,632       

Stockholders' distributions -                   -               -               (19,465)        (56,367)        (75,832)        

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2022 1,000               1,000           14,000         (521,033)      668,382       162,349       

Net income -                   -               -               -               145,144       145,144       

Stockholders' distributions -                   -               -               (48,339)        (101,801)      (150,140)      

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2023 1,000               1,000           14,000         (569,372)      711,725       157,353       

Net income -                   -               -               -               97,112         97,112         

Stockholders' distributions -                   -               -               (70,136)        (27,452)        (97,588)        

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2024 1,000               1,000$         14,000$       (639,508)$    781,385$     156,877$     

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 97,112$           145,144$         157,632$         
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,683               1,683               1,683               
Recognition of non-refundable deferred franchise fees (14,390)            (14,828)            (20,237)            

Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,743)              (1,235)              7,686               
Non-refundable deferred franchise sales -                   12,400             -                   

Net cash provided by operating activities 82,662             143,164           146,764           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment -                   -                   -                   

Net cash (used) in investing activities -                   -                   -                   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shareholders' distributions (27,452)            (101,801)          (56,367)            
Advances to related parties (70,136)            (48,339)            (19,465)            
Payment of notes payable -                   (4,588)              (31,986)            

Net cash (used in) financing activities (97,588)            (154,728)          (107,818)          

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (14,926)            (11,564)            38,946             

CASH, beginning of year 99,629             111,193           72,247             

CASH, end of year 84,703$           99,629$           111,193$         

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for interest -$                 -$                 1,039$             
Cash paid for taxes -$                 -$                 -$                 

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES  
 
PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC., a Florida corporation (the “Company”) was formed on November 3, 
2005.  The Company is a franchisor offering franchises with service marks “Preppy Pet” TM and other 
related logos with the right to market, sell, and deliver upscale pet boarding services including daycare, 
grooming salon and spa services primarily servicing dogs, but offering limited services to cats and other 
pets. 
 
Related Party 
 
The Company has one affiliate through common control.   Preppy Pet Inc. operates a Preppy Pet location 
like the franchise offered by the Company. 
  
A summary of significant accounting policies follows: 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
Preparation of the Company's financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of 
purchase to be cash equivalents.  The Company had no cash equivalents as of December 31, 2024, and 
2023.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable are recorded for amounts due based on the terms of executed franchise agreements for 
franchise sales and royalty fees.  These accounts receivable is carried at original invoice amount less an 
estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a review of outstanding amounts.  Management regularly 
evaluates individual customers’ receivables considering their financial condition, credit history and current 
economic conditions.  Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries of 
accounts receivable previously written off are recorded as income when received.  The Company had no 
amounts established as an allowance for uncollectible accounts as of December 31, 2024, and 2023. 
 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

 
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost.  Depreciation is provided using accelerated methods 
based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets (generally three to seven years).  
 



PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets Held for Sale 
 
Assets held for sale as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 consists of regional franchise development rights 
purchased from  a former master franchisee of the Company. 
 
Franchisee Revenue and Non-refundable Deferred Franchise Fee Revenue  
 
The Company recognizes revenues under the guidance of ASC 606, “Contracts with Customers”.  The 
Company’s revenue is principally generated through franchise agreements executed with the Company’s 
franchisees. 
 
 Each franchise agreement is comprised of several performance obligations.  The Company identifies those 
performance obligations, determines the contract price for each obligation, allocates the transaction price 
to each performance obligation, and recognizes revenue when the Company has satisfied the performance 
obligation by transferring control of the good or service to the franchisee. 
 
When a qualified party purchases a franchise, the Company grants the franchisee the right to operate the 
franchised business in a specific territory and to use the proprietary methods, techniques, trade dress, 
trademarks, and logos (“symbolic intellectual property” or “IP”) for an initial term of fifteen years.  
Revenues related to the designated territory and IP are continuing monthly royalty fees These monthly 
royalty fees are based on the franchise agreement and generally range from 4.0% to 6.0% of gross monthly 
revenue depending on the annual gross revenue of the franchisee.  A minimum royalty amount of $500 per 
month commences upon the first anniversary of the franchisee’s business opening.  Revenue from 
continuing monthly royalty fees is billed monthly and is recognized as revenue when earned.  These 
revenues will be used to continue the development of the Company’s brand, the franchise system and 
provide on-going support for the Company’s franchisees.   
 
Revenue from initial franchise fees is allocated to the performance obligations in the franchise agreement 
that are distinct from the territory rights and symbolic intellectual property and consist primarily of 
franchise acquisition and acceptance, site selection, restaurant specifications, initial training, new restaurant 
opening assistance and other ongoing support and training.  For each new franchise awarded, the 
Company’s current franchise agreement requires the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee of 
between $19,900 and $34,500 upon the signing of the agreement.  The amount allocated to each identified 
performance obligation is determined using the expected cost plus a margin or fair market value approach.  
Revenue from initial fees is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied and control of the 
goods or service has been transferred to the franchisee.  Unearned initial fee revenues are recorded as non-
refundable deferred revenue.  Commissions and other direct costs related to unsatisfied performance 
obligations are recorded as a contract acquisition asset and are recognized as expense when the related 
performance obligation has been satisfied.   
 
National advertising contribution – Continuing monthly national advertising contributions may be charged 
based on the franchise agreement and are generally 2.0% of gross weekly revenue of the franchisee.   
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NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Income Taxes  
 
The Company has elected to be treated as a Subchapter S Corporation under the provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  Under those provisions, taxable income and losses of the Company are reported on the 
income tax returns of the shareholder and no provisions for federal or state income taxes have been recorded 
on the accompanying balance sheet and statement of operations. 
 
The Company follows accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in income taxes under the 
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ASC 740, Income Taxes.  Using that 
guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the financial statements when it is more-likely-
than-not the positions will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.  A recognized tax position 
is then measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon 
settlement. 
 
Based on its evaluation, the Company has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions 
requiring recognition in its financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.  
 
Advertising Costs 
 
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.  Advertising costs were $28,389, $35,941, and 
$34,954 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
Concentrations of Credit Risk   
 
 Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk 
consist primarily of cash, franchise receivables and advances to Related Parties.  The Company places its 
temporary cash investments with financial institutions.  At times throughout the year the Company may, in 
the ordinary course of business, maintain cash balances in excess of federally insured limits.  Management 
does not believe the Company is exposed to any unusual risks on such deposits.  The Company grants credit  
to franchisees and Related Parties.  The Company’s ability to collect the amounts due from franchisees and 
Related Parties is affected by fluctuations in the economy and the operations of the franchisees.  
 
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Guidance 
 
The Company has adopted all recently issued Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU”).  Management has 
not yet determined the effect the adoption of the other recently issued ASUs, including those not yet 
effective, could have on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 
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NOTE 2 – CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 
 
The Company has recognized a liability for unearned revenue associated with franchisee acquisition and 
acceptance performance obligation of the Company’s franchise agreement.  The account balances and 
activity are as follows: 

  December 31,  
  2024  2023 

Non-refundable Deferred  Franchise Fees:     
Balance beginning of year   $       115,734    $        118,162  

Deferral of non-refundable franchise fees                     -                 12,400  
Recognition of non-refundable franchise fees             (14,390)             (14,828) 

Balance at end of year   $       101,344    $        115,734  
     

 
Estimated Recognition of Non-refundable Deferred Franchise Fees 
 
Estimated revenues to be recognized in future periods related to non-refundable deferred franchise fees as 
reported as of December 31, 2024, is as follows:   

   
Non-refundable 
Franchise Fees 

Year ending December 31:    
2025    $                14,098  
2026                      13,367  
2027                      13,367  
2028                      13,367  
2029                      12,117  
Thereafter                      35,028  

    $              101,344  
    

Disaggregation of Revenues 
 
Disaggregated revenues based on the satisfaction of performance obligations in the Company’s contracts 
with franchisees for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022  is as follows:’ 
 

  2024  2023  2022 
Performance obligations satisfied at a point in 
time  $      485,660   $      504,149   $      525,360  
Performance obligations satisfied by the passage 
of time            14,390             22,328             20,237  

Total revenues  $      500,050   $      526,477   $      545,597  
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NOTE 3 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 
 
Property and equipment, net consist of the following at December 31: 
 
           2024         2023 
Office equipment and furniture   $       24,754  $      24,754 

Accumulated depreciation           (21,528)         (19,845) 
   $          3,226  $        4,909 

 
 
Depreciation expense was $1,683, $1,683, and $1,683 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 
 
NOTE 4 – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RESTATED  
 
For the years ending December 31, 2023, and 2022 payments for payroll tax liabilities were mistakenly 
charged to payroll cost instead of to the accounts payable and accrued expenses liabilities.  The effect on 
the relevant balance sheet and statement of operations captions is as follows: 
 

  

As 
Originally 
Reported  

Corrected 
Balance  

Increase 
(Decrease) 

       
Balance Sheet       
As of December 31, 2023       

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $        53,826   $          6,451   $      47,375) 
Retained earnings           664,350           711,725             47,375  

       
Statement of Operations       
Year Ended December 31, 2023       

Payroll and related costs          179,219           144,686            34,533) 
Net income          110,611           145,144             34,533  

       
Statement of Operations       
Year Ended December 31, 2022       

Payroll and related costs          161,874           149,032          (12,842) 
Net income          144,790           157,632             12,842  
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NOTE 5 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Amounts due from the Company’s affiliate were $639,508, and $569,372 as of December 31, 2024, and 
2023, respectively.  The Company’s affiliate provides various supplies and equipment to the Company’s 
franchisees,  and the Company has made advances to, and provides a billing and collection service to the 
affiliate for those products.  The advances are reported as a component of stockholders’ equity in the 
accompany balance sheets as the advances do not have stated repayment terms and the ownership of these 
related parties is the same ownership of the Company. 
 
NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Litigation 
 
The Company may be subject to various claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary course 
of business.  In the opinion of management, all matters are of such kind, or involve such amounts, that 
unfavorable disposition, if any, would not have a material effect on the financial position of the Company. 
 
Rent Expense and Long-term Lease Agreement 
 
Rent expense was $30,126, $19,696, and $18,766 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 
2022, respectively.  The Company leases space on a month-to-month basis.   
 
 
 NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Date of Management’s Evaluation 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 14, 2025, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 



EXHIBIT B TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
        

SAMPLE NON-DISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITION PROVISIONS 
FOR GENERAL MANAGERS

    
        1. In consideration for employment, the undersigned, wishing to become a General Manager of
_____________________________, a Franchisee of Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc., agrees to take Preppy
Pet's (hereinafter referred to as Franchisor) basic course in management of a pet care services business
within 30 days of the date hereof.
    
        2. The undersigned shall not disclose to any unauthorized person any information pertaining to the
Franchisee's business, including information concerning pet care services and products, marketing
methods, advertising methods, product mix, sources, pricing techniques and any other information
represented as confidential by the Franchisee to the undersigned, without the Franchisor's specific
written consent during the term of employment nor for three (3) years thereafter.                            
    
        3. The undersigned shall not be involved directly or indirectly, as manager, general manager, sales
agent, sales or management level employee, consultant, owner, or representative, in any business or
business activity which is engaged wholly or partially in the business of selling or providing pet care
services or any business substantially competitive with Franchisee's business, anywhere within an area
defined by a fifty (50) mile radius of Franchisee's Protected Territory, during the term of employment,
nor for a period of two years after its termination.
    
        4. The undersigned expressly acknowledges and represents that, prior to entering into this
Agreement, he/she was employed and earned a living in some occupation other than that contemplated
by this Agreement, and would not be prevented or prohibited from being employed and earning a living
upon the termination of this Agreement, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, in the event he/she was
prohibited from engaging in the business of selling or providing pet care services.
    
The undersigned acknowledges that a copy of this Agreement will be immediately provided to Preppy
Pet Franchises, Inc., which is an intended third party beneficiary with the right to bring an action under
this provision.

The undersigned further acknowledges that he/she has received a copy of this Agreement.
     

                                                                          
Franchisee

                                                                          
Printed Name

                                                                          
Signature

                                                                                                              

Signature                  Date   
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EXHIBIT C TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
SCHEDULE OF STATE AGENCIES FOR ADMINISTRATION AND SERVICE OF PROCESS

California

Commissioner of Department of Financial Protection and Innovation 
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013-1105
(213) 736-2741, also 1-866 ASK-CORP (1-866-275-2677)

Hawaii
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
335 Merchant Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2722

Illinois
Franchise Division
Office of Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

Indiana
Agent

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House
200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

Administrator
Securities Commissioner
Indiana Securities Division
Room E-111
302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

Maryland
Agent for Service of Process

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place, 20th Floor
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-7044

Inquiries About Franchise Matters
Office of Attorney General
Division of Securities
200 St. Paul Place, 20th Floor
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360
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Michigan
Franchise Administrator
Consumer Protection Division
Antitrust and Franchise Unit
Michigan Dept. Of Attorney General
670 Law Building
Lansing, Michigan 48913
(517) 373-7117

Minnesota
Minnesota Dept. Of Commerce
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
(651) 539-1500

New York
Bureau of Investor Protection & Securities
New York State Dept. Of Law
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, New York 10005
(212) 416-8211

North Dakota
Office of Securities Commissioner
Fifth Floor
600 East Boulevard
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 224-4712

Rhode Island 
Division of Securities
Suite 232
233 Richmond Street
Providence, Rhode Island 02903
(401) 277-3048

South Dakota
Division of Securities
124 S, Euclid Avenue
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563
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Virginia
Agent for Service of Process

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission of Virginia
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9733

Inquiries About Franchise Matters
State Corporation Commission, Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9051

Washington
Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division
P.O.Box 9033
Olympia, Washington 98507-9033
(206) 753-6928

Wisconsin
Securities & Franchise Registration
Wisconsin Securities Commission
P.O.Box 1768
Madison, Wisconsin 53701
(608) 266-8559
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EXHIBIT D TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE-SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS

The following information supplements our Franchise Disclosure Document and supersedes any conflicting information
contained in the main body of the Disclosure Document.

FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

For franchisees in California, payment of initial fees is postponed until after all of franchisor’s initial obligations are
complete and franchisee is open for business.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the Franchisee concerning
termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If a franchise agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the

law, the law still controls.

The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal

bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This
provision may not be enforceable under California Law.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the state of Florida. This may not be enforceable under
California Law.

The franchise agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur in Orlando Florida and the franchise

agreement does not specify who pays the costs of arbitration.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and

federal laws (such as Business and Professional Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal
Arbitration Act) to any provisions in a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California. 

Neither the Franchisor, nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the Disclosure Document is subject to any
currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange.

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires the Franchisor to give the Franchisee a disclosure document,
in a form containing such information as the Commissioner may by rule or order require prior to a solicitation of a proposed

material modification of an existing franchise.

The California Franchise Investment Law requires that a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the sale of the

franchise be delivered together with the Disclosure Document.

You must sign a general release if you transfer your franchise.  California Corporations Code 31512 voids a waiver of
your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code 31000 through 31516).  Business and

Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000

through 20043).

In accordance with CCR §310.156.3(a)(3), the Franchisor’s URL address is www.PreppyPet.com. 

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF  FINANCIAL
PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE
DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT https://dfpi.ca.gov.

The financial performance representation does not reflect the cost of sales, operating expenses or other costs or expenses that
must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an

independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your franchised business. Franchisees or former
franchisees, listed in the Disclosure Document, may be one source of this information.
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Illinois State Law Appendix

The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated and your rights upon non-renewal may be affected by
Illinois Law, ILCS 705/19 and 705/20.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind
any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Act is void."

The Franchise Agreement requires that a Franchisee shall be subject to the jurisdiction or venue of any state or federal

court in Florida .  These provisions may not be enforceable under Illinois law.

BY EXECUTING THIS APPENDIX, THE PARTIES HERETO MAKE THIS APPENDIX A PART OF THE

ACCOMPANYING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND INCORPORATE THIS APPENDIX THEREIN.

Minnesota State Law Appendix

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3,
4, and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days

to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement.

BY EXECUTING THIS APPENDIX, THE PARTIES HERETO MAKE THIS APPENDIX A PART OF THE

ACCOMPANYING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND INCORPORATE THIS APPENDIX THEREIN.

FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Regis tration of this franchise by New York State does not mean that New York State recommends it or has
verified the information in this Disclosure Document.

The Franchisor may, if it chooses, negotiate with you about items covered in the prospectus. However, the Franchisor
cannot use the negotiating process to prevail upon a prospective Franchisee to accept terms which are less favorable than
those set forth in this prospectus.

All references to “Disclosure Document” shall be deemed to include the term “Offering Prospectus” as used under New
York law.

Item 3 of this Offering Prospectus is supplemented with the following: “Neither the Franchisor nor any person
identified in Item 2 of this Disclosure Document has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere  to  a felony
charge or, within the ten year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of a
misdemeanor or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or been held liable in a civil action by final judgment or
been the subject of a material complaint or other legal proceeding if such misdemeanor conviction or charge or civil action,
complaint, or other legal proceeding involved violation of any franchise law, securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property, or comparable allegations.”

Item 4 of this Offering Prospectus is supplemented with the following: “During the fifteen (15) year period immediately
preceding the date of this Offering Prospectus, neither the Franchisor nor any officer or general partner of the Franchisor has
been adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency or been a principal officer of any company or general partner in
any partnership that was adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency during or within one year after the period that
such officer or general partner of the Franchisor held such position in such company or partnership, or is subject to any
pending bankruptcy or reorganization proceeding.”

Modifications that we make to our Confidential Operations Manual as permitted by the Franchise Agreement will not
impose an unreasonable economic burden on you.

Provisions of general releases are mentioned in the Offering Prospectus and specified in the Franchise Agreement.
These releases are limited by the following: all rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action arising in your favor from the
provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued under this law shall
remain in force, it being the intent that the non-waiver provisions of the General Business Law of the State of New York
Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.
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We will not make any assignment of the Franchise Agreement except to an assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is
willing and able to assume our obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

The choice of law of the Franchise Agreement should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon either you
or us by the General Business Law of the State of New York, Article 33.

Virginia State Law Appendix

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the Franchise
Disclosure Document  for use in the Commonwealth of Virginia shall be amended as follows:

Additional Disclosure. The following statements are added to Item 17.h.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a
franchise without reasonable cause. If any ground for default or termination stated in a franchise agreement does not
constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that
provision may not be enforceable

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of
the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud
in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise

Washington State Law Appendix

The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with

the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.  There may also be court decisions which may
supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your

franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in the state of Washington, or a

place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW
shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are

represented by independent counsel.  Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period
for claims under the Act or rights of remedies under the act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a
transfer.
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EXHIBIT E TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

OPERATIONS MANUALS TABLES OF CONTENTS

SITE SELECTION & BUILD-OUT MANUAL
Table of Contents

Tab Page

1. Finding Your Site  3

The Elements of a Good Location  3

Site Selection Research  4

Using Outside Agents      4

Critical Variables to Analyze  5

2. Break-Even Point  6

Cost Estimates  8

How to Calculate Weekly Break Even  9

Determining Who Manages the Property 10

Initial Contact With the Property Manager  10

3. Lease Negotiation Points 11

Rent 11

Term 12

Construction Responsibilities 12

4. The Leasing Process 13

Required Paperwork 13

Lease Negotiation 14

5. Opening Time-Line 15

Opening Time-Line Chart 17

6.  Financing 22

Corporate Comments 23
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OPERATIONS MANUAL
Table of Contents

   Tab              Page 
  1 Introduction and Overview A1

The Preppy Pet Philosophy A1
Early Franchise Structure A1
Plans for the Future A2

How to Use this Manual A3
When You Receive It A3
Restricted Use Explained A3
Use the Manual Effectively A3
Manual Updates A3
Lost or Stolen Manuals A3
Disclaimer A4

     
  2 Entrepreneurship and Your Franchise B1

The Franchisee - Franchisor Relationship B1
Your Responsibilities B1
Problem Resolution B2

The System at Work B3
The Preppy Pet System Works B3
Attention to Detail B3
Your Focus B3

  Getting Started B4
The Value B4
The Foundation B4
Preparation B4

 Using the Preppy Pet Name B5
Proper Name Usage B5
Fictitious Name B5
Business Mailing Address B5
Zoning Permits B6

Forms of Business Organizations B7
Proprietorships B7
Partnerships B7
Limited Partnerships B8
Corporations B8
Subchapter S B9
Limited Liability Companies B9
Additional Resources B10

Licenses & Tax Compliance B11
Business Licenses B11
Federal Tax ID B11
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Sales Tax Numbers B11
Minutes B11

Engaging Professional Advisors B12
Engaging an Attorney B12
Finding an Accountant B12

Building a Banking Relationship B13
Necessary Information B14
Obtaining Credit B15
Credit Cards B15

Insurance Requirements B16
Insurance Agent B16
Workers Compensation B16
Comprehensive General Liability B16
Product Liability B16
Vehicle Insurance B16
Umbrella B17
Preppy Pet as Co-Insured B17

Engaging a Payroll Service B18
Options B18

Trademark Usage and Protection B19
It is a Trademark B19
How to Display It B19
Be Consistent B19
Mark Infringement B19
Example of Correctly Displaying the Logo B20
Using the Correct Logo B20
The Preppy Pet Logo B20
Using the Correct Colors B20

Maintaining Confidentiality B21
Confidential Trade Secrets B21
Protection Policies B21

On-Going Training B23
Franchise Management School B23
Prerequisites B23
Who May Attend B23
Fees B23
Repeating Schools B23
School Scheduling B23
Training Schedule B24

Preppy Pet Meetings B25
The Benefits to You B25
Annual National Meeting B25
Quarterly Regional Meetings B25

  3 Facilities C1
Setting Up Your Kennel C1
Space & Layout C1
Site Selection C2
Lease Negotiation C2
Telephone Features C2
Utilities C2
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  4 Profit Centers D1
Your Profit Center List D1
Revenue Distribution D1
Procurement D1
Industry Trends D1
Guarantees D2

5 Equipment E1
Office Equipment E1
Vehicles E1
Inventory E1
Financing E1
Internet Service Provider E1
Computers E2
Additional Hardware E2
Software Requirements E2
Recommended Software E2

  6 Human Resources F1
Defining Your Needs F1

Recognizing the Signs F1
Independent Contractors F1
Employer Responsibilities F1
Employee Files F2
Selection Pointers F2

Recruiting & Selection F3
Soliciting Applicants F3
Advertising F3

Maintaining Your Staff F4
Policies F4
Employee Input F4
Motivation F4
Performance Evaluations F4

Employee Handbook F6
Tips for Retaining Quality Employees F10

  7 Marketing G1
The Four “P’s” of Marketing G1

Product G1
Price G1
Place G2
Promotion G2

The Opportunity G2
Marketing Basics G3

Creating Brand Awareness G3
Name Recognition G3
Elements of the Preppy Pet Brand G3

Advertising Tools G3
Search Engine Marketing G3
Social Media Promotion G4
Newsletters G4
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Pet Periodicals G5
Cable TV & Radio G5
Bandit Signs G5
Groomers G5
Pet Supply Retailers G5
Other Media G5
Direct Sales Calls G5
Signage G5
Web Site G5
Public Relations G6
Vehicles G6
Tear Sheets & Flyers G6
Marketing Partners G6
Introductory Offers G7

Trade Show Booth Promotions G8
The Dynamics of Pet Show Marketing G8
Eight Steps for Working in the Exhibit G8
Two Critical Don’ts G8
Set Your Objectives G8
Prepare Your Presentation for a Two-Minute Delivery G9
Gain the Attention of Visitors by Stressing Benefit Statements G10
Qualify Your Visitors G10
Record Their Qualifying Information G11
Be Sure the Prospect Understands WIIFM G11
Get Agreement from Your Visitor Who and How You Will Follow-Up G12
Critique Yourself as You Go G12
Lead Sheet Form G13
Lead Sheet Instructions G14

Spreading the Word G15
Maximize Your Return G15
Referrals G15
Testimonials G15

  8 Prospecting for Boarding Guests H1
Prospecting Tools H1
Organizing & Managing Your Leads H2
Prospecting Tips H2

  9    Sales I1
Fundamentals I1

Perform a Needs Assessment & Determine Expectations I1
Know Your Services I1
Classify Your Prospect I1
Maintain Professionalism I2
Your Sales Presentation I2
Follow Up I3

Sales Tips & Tools I4
How to Grow Your Franchise I5

Increase the Number of Customers You Serve I5
Increase Your Average Sale I5
Sales Training Suggestions I5
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  10 Business Controls J1
Operations Manual J1
Profit Projections J1
Periodic Reports J1
Credit Terms J1
Monthly Royalty Report J2
Reports Required by Government Agencies J5
Other Preppy Pet Reports J5

Ad Call Report J5
Customer Roster Print Out J5
Customer Satisfaction Report J5

Managing For Profits J6
Cost of Sales J6
Equipment J6

Finance & Accounting Basics J7
The Balance Sheet J7

Assets J8
Liabilities J8

The Profit and Loss Statement J10
Watching for Financial Warning Signs J14
Preparing Your Budget & Business Plan J15

Principles of Preparing a Successful Budget J15
Mission J15
Objective J16
Strategies J16
Type J16

Sample Franchise Profit & Loss Budget J17
Maintaining Your Financial Records J18

Record Retention & Audit Requirements J18
Accounting J18
Incorporation Papers J18

Chart of Accounts J19
Balance Sheet Accounts J23
Income Statement Accounts J27

 11 Computing with Preppy Pet K1
Kennel Management Software K1
QuickBooks K1
New Product Approval K2

 12 Success as an Entrepreneur L1
Time Commitment for Success L1

The Benefits to You L1
Exclusivity of Your Time Commitment L1
Setting Priorities for Time Usage L1

Balance L2
Success is a Journey, Not a Destination L2
On-Going Education L2
The Balancing Act L2
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 13 Franchise License Compliance Rules A1

Territory A1
Preppy Pet Services A1
Franchise Management A2
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Royalties & Fees A3
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Post-Termination Obligations A4
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Sample Yellow Pages Ads C15
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63



PROCEDURES MANUAL
Table of Contents

Tab                                                                                                                                                 Page     
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Discharging Pets C6
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4 – Business Procedures
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Franchise Agreement 
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PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

          
    AGREEMENT made this                    day of                             , 202    by and between Preppy Pet
Franchises, Inc., a Florida  Corporation, having its principal place of business at 57 West Michigan Street,
Orlando, Florida 32806  (hereinafter referred to as "Franchisor") and

                                                                                                                                                                  

of                                                                                                                                                            in

the State of                                , (hereinafter referred to as "Franchisee").
    
    WHEREAS, Franchisor has acquired experience, skills and knowledge with reference to the
development, opening and operation of a business offering and providing pet daycare, boarding, grooming
salon and spa services under the Preppy Pet logo to consumers; and
    
    WHEREAS, Franchisor’s affiliate, Preppy Pet, Inc., is the sole owner to the right, title and interest in
and to the trademark "Preppy Pet" which was registered on the United States Patent and Trademark Office
Principal Register on January 21, 2014, Registration Certificate Number 4470040. Preppy Pet, Inc. has
granted Franchisor the exclusive license to use this mark in franchising. Our affiliate also has registered
our graphic Logo on the United States Patent and Trademark Office Principal Register on March 14, 2017,
Registration Certificate Number 5159832. Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc has received registration of our
moto, “Pet Stays Your Way” on the United States Patent and Trademark Office Principal Register on May
14, 2019 and was assigned Serial Number 5750433.  

    WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to obtain from Franchisor a franchise to operate a pet boarding facility
offering daycare, grooming salon and spa services from one location and in connection therewith to use
the Trademark, to employ the Franchisor's approved product lines, business techniques, and systems, and
to benefit from its experience and knowledge;
    
    NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of their mutual promises herein contained,
and for other good and valuable consideration acknowledged by them to be adequate, do hereby agree as
follows: 
   
1.  APPOINTMENT
    

A.  Franchisor hereby grants unto Franchisee and Franchisee hereby accepts the right, license and
privilege to use and benefit from the Franchisor's techniques, skills, experience, knowledge, and the
Proprietary Marks in the operation of one Preppy Pet care services facility under the conditions hereinafter
set forth. Franchisor further grants to Franchisee the right to operate its business only from one approved site
within the Area described in Addendum A. The term "franchise" as used herein shall mean either the right,
license or privilege so granted hereunder, or the business to be operated by the Franchisee, or both, as the
context would so dictate.
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Franchisee acknowledges that it has no exclusive rights to use any of the Marks or any part of the
franchised system anywhere other than from one approved site within the franchisee’s protected territory
described herein, and Franchisor may license to others, or use the Marks itself, outside of the franchisee’s
protected geographical territory in any manner it chooses, in its sole discretion.

So long as Franchisee is in full compliance with this Agreement, Franchisor will not establish other
franchises or company-owned businesses operating a pet boarding facility providing daycare, grooming
salon and spa services under a different trade name or trademark in Franchisee’s protected area. Franchisor
retains the right to sell the rights to use the Preppy Pet name for other uses in any area outside of your
protected territory.

B.  Subject to availability, Franchisee may purchase additional franchises, at a rate of seventy-five
percent (75%) of the rate being charged new franchisees at the time of your purchase if Franchisee is in
compliance with the terms of this agreement and any other agreements between the Franchisor (and its
affiliates) and the Franchisee.
  
2.  SITE SELECTION AND PROTECTED TERRITORY
    

The Franchisee must operate this business from a commercial site approved by the Franchisor in writing
that is in compliance with local business codes and within the Franchisee’s Designated Area which is
defined on Addendum A. The Designated Area will be reserved for a period of ninety (90) days to provide
the Franchisee adequate time to find a specific site acceptable to the Franchisor.

The specific site location and its Protected Territory will be defined in Addendum C.

Franchisee is free to market Preppy Pet services only within the Protected Territory. In addition,
Franchisee may not, unless in conjunction with other Preppy Pet Franchisees, advertise in telephone,
internet or similar directories that target areas outside of Franchisee’s protected territory nor establish
mailing addresses for the Preppy Pet business or make other representations to potential clients that would
lead others to believe that Franchisee has facilities or authorization to operate outside of its Protected
Territory.

During the term hereof, Preppy Pet will not open, nor license another franchisee to open a care services
facility under the Preppy Pet mark, nor under another name, within the Protected Territory described in
Addendum C, nor will another franchisee be licensed to directly solicit business within said territory.
   
3.  INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE AND RELATED CHARGES
    
    In consideration of the franchise and rights granted to Franchisee herein, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor: 
___ an Initial Franchise Fee of $19,900 for the rights to open one Preppy Pet 2.5 Location, or 
___ an Initial Franchise Fee of $34,500 for the rights to open one Original Preppy Pet Location at the site
defined in Addendum C within the Designated Area described in Addendum A. 
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       This Franchise is a  
___ New Franchise, or
___ The Transfer of an Existing Franchise for which a Transfer Fee in the amount of $__________ will be
due to Franchisor.

Payment of this fee must be made in a lump sum at the time of the signing of this agreement. Fees shall
be deemed earned and non-refundable upon payment. 

If you purchase a Preppy Pet 2.5 Franchise, you may expand to become a Original Preppy Pet Franchise
by paying the difference between your Initial Franchise Fee and the Fee charged new franchisees for a
Original Preppy Pet Franchise at the time you wish to expand. 

4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE FRANCHISOR
    
    Franchisor hereby agrees to do the following:
             
    A.  Training. Franchisor will conduct or arrange for the following training programs for Franchisee:

          (i)  "Preppy Pet Academy" This five-day long program covers basic management and operation of a
Preppy Pet business and is conducted at, or near, Franchisor’s Headquarters in Orlando, FL or at a franchisee’s
location. (Training duration and location may be modified.) Only Franchise owner(s) and Franchise General
Managers may attend this program. Franchise General Managers shall not function in such capacity without
having successfully completed such training program within thirty (30) days of hire or engagement. "Franchise
owner(s)" shall mean partners, principal shareholders, officers, members or proprietors of the Franchise, as the
case may be, according to the type of franchise business organization. The training program must be successfully
completed prior to commencement of the franchise business. Failure by Franchisee (or its designee) to
successfully complete such program may result in termination of this Franchise Agreement and all rights granted
to Franchisee hereunder shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor. Each Franchisee shall have the right to enroll two
(2) people in this school at no additional charge. The fee for training more than two owners or managers is
currently $750 per attendee, per week, but is subject to change.

The duration, location and content of the training programs are established by the Franchisor and may be
modified, including any fees, in the sole discretion of the Franchisor. If Franchisee seeks to have additional
managers trained in excess of the limits stated above, they must be approved by Franchisor and the applicable
training fees must be paid in advance. Travel, accommodations, payroll, worker’s compensation insurance and
related expenses for all persons attending any of Franchisor's training courses shall be borne solely by Franchisee.
    
         (ii)   Advisory Service.  Franchisor will provide a continuing advisory service which will include, but not
be limited to, consultation on pet safety, sales, marketing, business or technical problems with an analysis of
Franchisee's market penetration and profitability. Franchisor may offer additional training and establish
prerequisites or qualifications for those seeking to enroll in any such additional training course. Franchisor may
furnish Franchisee with certain training aids for Franchisee to provide basic training to Franchisee's personnel
without charge.
    

Initials   
    _______

|             |
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         (iii)  If Franchisor deems it appropriate, it may provide a competency examination to test the knowledge
and skills in any of the above areas of expertise. A candidate passing such examination will have all rights and
privileges as those who have successfully completed the related training program.    
                                                
    B.  Operations Material. Franchisor will make available, at no additional cost to Franchisee, its confidential
Operations Manuals and training material together with any revisions or amendments thereto which may be made
by Franchisor from time to time during the term of this Agreement. Franchisor will regularly review new
products, and services for Franchisee to deliver to its clients. Franchisor will hold an annual meeting for all
Franchisees to attend in order to gain additional knowledge in the industry. Franchisee may be charged a fee to
attend said meeting and will be responsible for travel and lodging expenses while attending such conferences.

    
C.  Approved Products. Any products, including pet kennels, and all materials that are used within the

Franchisee’s business or sold to customers, must be approved by Franchisor, in writing, before use. At the present
time, Franchisor is the only approved vendor of pet kennels.

    D.  Site Selection. Subject to Section 2, Franchisee shall be responsible for researching its local market to find
one or more potential sites for its pet care services facility based on criteria as established by Franchisor.
Franchisor will advise Franchisee in the selection of a suitable site, appropriate kennel layouts, and provide lists of
suitable equipment and furnishings for the franchised business. Franchisor will assist Franchisee in the site
selection process and Franchisor reserves the sole right of final review and consent to any location of the kennel.
Franchisor will use available demographic information to help Franchisee evaluate the site and the area in which it
is located. In addition, Franchisor may withhold its consent if Franchisor feels that the costs, term, renewal terms
and stipulations could be detrimental to Franchisee’s success.  Whether Franchisee chooses to operate from an
owned property or rent from others, Franchisor will review details of the location as to suitability, and approve or
disapprove the chosen site within 20 days of notification of Franchisee's preference. The ultimate decision of
where to locate its kennel facility is the responsibility of Franchisee and the Franchisor may not be held liable for
an inferior site. Franchisor’s final review and consent to the location of Franchisee’s center is not a guarantee that
a Preppy Pet business can be successfully operated there or anywhere else.
   
    E.  Promotion. Subject to this Agreement, Franchisor agrees to provide advice and training in methods for
selling, advertising, promoting and developing the franchised business. From time to time Franchisor may
develop marketing materials and newsletters to assist Franchisee in promoting its pet care services. Samples of
such materials will be given to Franchisee and additional quantities may be purchased from the Franchisor or
other vendors. If Franchisor elects to establish an Advertising Fund, it will assist those charged with
administering the Fund with developing advertising promotions and materials.
    
    F.  Website Customization. Franchisor will add Franchisee’s contact information to Franchisor’s website
within 15 days prior to the date Franchisee opens for business. In addition, Franchisee’s training will include
training in the establishment and use of social media accounts that will meet with Franchisor’s minimum
standards. Franchisee is prohibited from establishing its own website utilizing the Preppy Pet mark nor may it
establish social media accounts without Franchisor’s written permission.

5.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE FRANCHISEE
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    A.  Training. Pursuant to Sections 4A, Franchisee agrees to attend and cause its designated General
Management employees to attend and successfully complete the training programs referred to in Section 4A, in
accordance with all of the terms and conditions set forth therein.   

    B.  Development of Franchisee’s Kennel, Commencement and Continuity of Operation. Franchisee agrees to
complete its initial training and open its franchise business within 180 days from the date this Franchise
Agreement is signed. Should Franchisee be unable to meet this deadline, Franchisor will grant a 90-day extension
if Franchisee submits a written request and includes an explanation of efforts taken to date to find a suitable
location. 

Franchisee agrees at its expense, to do or cause to be done the following within 180 days following the Effective
Date of this Agreement:

i.   Deliver to Franchisor for review and approval a completed site approval report and other materials and
information as specified in the Operations Manual. Approval of site that meets the criteria for demographic
characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from, proximity to, and nature of
other businesses, other commercial characteristics, and the site’s size, appearance, and other physical
characteristics will not be unreasonably withheld;

ii.  Deliver the proposed lease with landlord’s acceptance of Collateral Assignment of Lease (Addendum
G) and other requirements as contained in the Operations Manual for Franchisor’s written approval prior to
entering into a lease for the site;  

iii.  Secure all financing required to develop and operate the franchise business;

iv.   Obtain all necessary insurance as outlined in Section 5 (I);

v.   Obtain all permits and licenses required to construct and operate the franchise pet care business;

vi.   Construct, or have contstructed, all required improvements to the site and decorate the franchise in
compliance with our approved plans, trade dress, and specifications;

vii.  Purchase or lease and install all required equipment, fixtures, furnishings, and signs according to
Confidential Operations Manual;

viii.  Purchase or lease and install the approved Business Management Software System;

ix.    Purchase an opening inventory of required, authorized, and approved products, materials and
supplies;

x.      Obtain a certificate of occupancy from the city/county/state, as required by Franchisee’s jurisdiction.

Initials   
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xi.     Open the Franchised business, commence operations and continuously operate the franchised
business as outlined in this Section.

It is Franchisee’s responsibility to prepare all required construction plans and specifications for the franchise
business only in accordance with our approved plans and specifications, and to make sure that these plans and
specifications comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) and similar rules governing public
accommodations for persons with disabilities, other applicable ordinances, building codes, permit requirements,
and lease requirements and restrictions. Franchisor may require Franchisee to use architects and contractors
designated or approved by us. Franchisee must send Franchisor initial space plans for approval. Once Franchisor
approves the initial space plans in writing, Franchisee must provide Franchisor with complete space plans,
architectural drawings, construction plans and specification for review and then receive Franchisor’s written
approval of them before beginning construction of the franchise kennel.  Franchisee must also send Franchisor all
revised plans and specifications, including any additions or substitutions, for Franchisor’s review and written
approval. Franchisee may not begin construction of its franchise property without written approval from
Franchisor. Franchisor may inspect the site while Franchisee is developing the franchise business. Any review of
the construction plans and specifications will be limited to ensuring Franchisee’s compliance with Franchisor’s
design and other requirements for a Preppy Pet franchise business. Franchisor will not assess compliance with
federal, state or local laws and regulations. Compliance with those laws is the Franchisee’s responsibility. Any
changes that Franchisee makes to the space plans, architectural drawings, construction plans or specifications
must be provided to Franchisor for review and written approval.

    Once Franchise operations commence, Franchisee agrees to ensure that its phones are answered, either by
an employee or electronically during normal business hours.

Further, the owner(s) of the Franchise agree(s) to devote his or her full time and efforts to the promotion of the
franchise or to have a General Manager devote his or her full time and efforts to the promotion of the success of
the franchise. In such latter event, such General Manager must have completed successfully the training courses
described in Section 4A.  

Franchisee agrees to notify Franchisor 10 days in advance of any planned closings of the business and within
24 hours of the start of any emergency closings. Failure to communicate reasons and duration for closings may
cause the Franchise to be deemed abandoned and suitable remedies may be commenced by Franchisor. In all
circumstances, Franchisee agrees to make every reasonable effort to ensure that the Franchise’s phones are
answered, customers’ needs filled and pet care activities are provided with a lapse of no more than 10 business
days.

  C.  Proprietary Marks.
    
            (i)  Franchisee agrees to use the Proprietary Marks so licensed only in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Franchisee agrees that during the term of this Agreement, and thereafter, Franchisee shall not, directly
nor indirectly, contest the validity of ownership by Franchisor of the Proprietary Marks so licensed hereunder.
Franchisee further agrees to promptly notify Franchisor of any claim, demand or suit brought upon it by any other
person, firm or corporation to use the Proprietary Marks licensed hereunder.
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            (ii) Franchisor acknowledges its obligations to police the use of the Proprietary Marks and agrees to do
so. Franchisee agrees promptly to notify Franchisor of any litigation instituted by any person, firm, corporation or
governmental agency against Franchisee, concerning the use of the Proprietary Marks. The Franchisor will defend
the proper use of the Proprietary Marks that are in compliance with Franchisor’s standards. Franchisee agrees to
execute, subject to the reasonable approval of counsel for Franchisee, any and all documents and do such acts and
things as may, in the opinion of counsel for Franchisor, be necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution,
either in the name of Franchisor or in the name of Franchisee, as Franchisor shall, in its sole discretion, determine. 

 

              (iii) Franchisee shall not use the Proprietary Marks or any part or form thereof as part of its corporate,
partnership, or other business name. Franchisee agrees to obtain the written approval of Franchisor for said name
before opening its franchise business and before commencing operations. Franchisee agrees not to use the
Proprietary Marks in entering into any agreement or contract of any description, or in incurring any obligation, it
being understood that Franchisee is only to use its corporate, partnership or proprietorship name for this purpose.
Nothing herein contained shall prevent Franchisee from identifying itself as a Preppy Pet franchisee as specified in
Franchisor's confidential operating manuals. The use of the Franchisor's Proprietary Marks for operating its
Preppy Pet business, for Internet promotion, for business cards and stationery is exemplified in the Franchisor’s
Operations Manual and Franchisee agrees in so using said Marks to follow exactly the examples and format as set
forth in the manuals or in any like materials provided by Franchisor.
    
            (iv) Franchisee agrees to operate, advertise and promote the franchised business under the Proprietary
Marks and to carry out its business under said Proprietary Marks in accordance with operational standards
established by Franchisor as set forth in the Confidential Operating Manuals or other documents. Franchisee
agrees to promote the mark "Preppy Pet" and others instituted from time to time, in all publications, printing,
signs and visual images by reproducing said name at least two point sizes larger than any listing of its corporate,
partnership, or proprietorship name. Franchisee further agrees to use no type style, color combination nor other
graphic device to cause its business name, or any other name or design, to gain dominance over the "Preppy Pet"
name or any Proprietary Marks utilized.

            (v)  Franchisee agrees to allow Franchisor, in the sole discretion of Franchisor, to enter and inspect the
Franchisee's premises, and to observe the manner in which Franchisee is operating its pet boarding and care
services, it being understood that such rights are important to Franchisor to preserve the integrity of its Proprietary
Marks and to make certain that the Franchisee is properly using said Proprietary Marks in the operation of its
franchise business.

            (vi) Franchisee understands and acknowledges that each and every detail of the Preppy Pet system is
important to Franchisor, to Franchisee, and to other licensed Franchisees. In order to develop and maintain
uniformity of services, products, and applications, and therefore, to enhance the reputation, trade demand and
goodwill of all Preppy Pet Franchisees, Franchisee accordingly covenants:
             
         (a)  to advertise and promote his/her franchise under the name “Preppy Pet” except where
otherwise required by law;
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         (b)  to adopt and use the Proprietary Marks licensed hereunder solely in the manner prescribed by
Franchisor; and

         ©  to carry out its business under said Proprietary Marks in accordance with operational standards
established by Franchisor, and as set forth in the confidential operating manuals and/or other documents.

(d)  to use the Marks on the Internet, and in domain names for the Internet, only under the listings
established by Preppy Pet as described in the confidential operating manuals and/or other documents.

            (vii) Franchisee acknowledges that valuable goodwill is attached to Franchisor's trademarks, service
marks, trade names, and/or copyrights and that it will use them only in the manner and to the extent specifically
licensed by this Agreement.
    
        D. Operations.
    
            (i)  Franchisee agrees to conduct its franchise in accordance with Franchisor's Confidential Operating
Manuals as the same may be revised from time to time. Franchisee further agrees to treat at all times the contents
of said manuals as confidential and to reproduce or copy parts thereof only as instructed therein or as otherwise
approved by Franchisor. Franchisee and Franchise Owner(s) shall not at any time, either during the term of this
Agreement or thereafter, disclose, copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce, in whole or in part, or otherwise
make available, any portion of said manuals or confidential information to any unauthorized person or entity. All
management personnel shall execute a Non-Disclosure Agreement similar to that attached as Addendum B, the
Sample Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Provisions for General Managers.

            (ii) Franchisee acknowledges that said manuals shall at all times remain the sole property of
Franchisor, and Franchisee agrees to promptly deliver, neither expecting nor demanding any fees, said manuals
and training materials of Franchisor to Franchisor or its designee upon the expiration or other termination of this
Agreement.
    
        E. Standards of Quality.
    
            (i)  Franchisee agrees to market, sell and deliver in its local marketplace, under the Preppy Pet name, in
such manner as may be determined by Franchisor, pet boarding, daycare, grooming salon and spa services, as will
meet the reasonable specifications and standards from time to time designated by Franchisor. Preppy Pet 2.5
Franchisees are restricted to a maximum of 72 kennels in their operation while Original Preppy Pet Franchisees
are limited only by the space available in the facility. In addition, Franchisee will provide care of pets as required
by Franchisor’s training and manuals; local government regulations; and its approved attending veterinarian.
Franchisee agrees not to conduct any other business or activity utilizing the same location, equipment, or
personnel.
     
           (ii)  Franchisee is required to provide all mandatory services as suggested by Franchisor’s Operations
Manuals in the conduct of its business and to purchase any inventory and materials used by its staff or sold to
customers from suppliers suggested and approved by Franchisor. Franchisee is not required to purchase supplies,
business cards, stationery, brochures or similar items from Franchisor, but the quality of such items must comply
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with the standards and specifications therefor of Franchisor. Franchisor will provide said quality standards and
specifications to Franchisee during initial training.

    F. Modification.
    
    Franchisee agrees to operate its franchise using Franchisor's Proprietary Marks, copyrighted materials, and
business techniques as existing upon execution of this Agreement. Franchisor may reasonably modify same
during the term of this Agreement. 

Any changes or modifications to be made to the franchised business as a result of any such modification or
development of any of the Proprietary Marks, copyrighted materials, products, equipment or techniques shall be
made by Franchisee within three (3) months time after their modification or development at the Franchisee's
expense. If Franchisee must modify or discontinue the use of a trademark as a result of changes made by the
Franchisor, Franchisor will reimburse Franchisee for its tangible costs of such changes that exceed $5,000. Any
such reimbursed expenses must be pre-approved by the Franchisor.
    
    G. Advertising.
    
        (i)  Franchisee agrees to submit to Franchisor for its prior written approval all sales promotion materials
and advertising to be used by Franchisee to promote its products and services, including, but not limited to, 
internet, social media, newspaper, newsletter, apparel, email promotion, text messages, poster, direct mail, radio
and television advertising, specialty and novelty items, stationery and business cards. However, any advertising
need not be submitted for the Franchisor's approval if it is prepared in accordance with the Confidential Operating
Manuals. Unless written disapproval of said advertising and promotional material is received by Franchisee from
Franchisor within 15 days from the date such material is submitted to and received by Franchisor, said material
shall be considered approved.

           (ii)  Franchisee agrees to use the Proprietary Marks in advertising in accordance with the terms of the
confidential operating manuals of Franchisor. Examples of advertising contained in such manuals are deemed
approved unless otherwise stated in writing by Franchisor.

  (iii)   Franchisee agrees to execute Franchisor’s Start Up Promotion Advertising program as described in
Franchisor’s Operations Manuals.

    H. Accounting and Records.
    
            (i)  Franchisee agrees to maintain and preserve during the term of the franchise (and for three years
thereafter) full, complete and accurate books of account and records of all transactions including receipts,
expenses, capital expenses and investments. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor periodic reports on forms in the
manner and at the times specified herein. The required reports for submission as of the date of this Agreement are
as follows:
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REPORT TIME TO SUBMIT

Royalty Report On or before the 10th day of
the following month

Advertising Fund Report
(when in effect)

On or before the 10th day of
the following month

Online Access to Accounting
and Kennel Management Software

24/7 through Internet Access
to your software and computer databases

Internal Quarterly Profit & Loss Statements 
of the Franchised Business

On or before 15 days following 
each Calendar Quarter

Annual Profit & Loss Statement, 
Balance Sheet, and Tax Returns of the

Franchised Business

On or before 60 days following 
each Calendar Year

            (ii) All records, ledgers and other documents of the franchised business shall be made available for
audit or inspection by Franchisor (or its designee) during normal business hours upon reasonable notice by
Franchisor or its designee. If Franchisee fails or refuses to permit such an audit or inspection, Franchisee agrees to
pay Franchisor its expense incurred in connection with such attempted inspection or audit.
    
       (iii) Franchisor may cause an audit to be conducted on the books and records of Franchisee by a qualified
party chosen by Franchisor. If the audit was performed due to the Franchisee’s failure to report total gross receipts
or provide other reports or tax returns as required above or if the audit establishes that Franchisee understated total
gross receipts (as defined in Section 6A) to Franchisor for any period by more than three per cent (3%) of the
amount of actual total gross receipts, Franchisee shall pay for the cost of the audit, and shall pay as liquidated
damages a sum equal to 15% of the additional Royalty Fees due for the period so audited. Any unpaid royalties
revealed by such an audit shall bear interest at a rate of 18% per annum from the date payment was due. Such
payments shall be received by Franchisor within three (3) days of the date that Franchisee receives written notice
that such payments are due. Franchisee shall maintain the funds, books and records of the franchised business
separate from and independent of all other funds, business and personal records of Franchisee and franchise
owner(s). If there is any commingling of such funds or books and records, then Franchisor's rights of audit and
inspection granted hereunder also shall apply to such other business and personal records (including banking and
financial information) of Franchisee and franchise owner(s). 
             
    I. Insurance.

        Franchisee, at Franchisee's sole expense, agrees to maintain adequate insurance and indemnity coverage
throughout the term of this agreement and any extension thereof with an insurance carrier having an A VIII or
better rating with the Alfred M. Best & Company, Inc rating agency. Franchisee acknowledges that this
requirement shall in no way be construed as making Franchisee the agent of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to
provide the following coverages (insurance limits specified are minimum recommended limits and are subject to
change from time to time) and in connection therewith to identify the Franchisor as a named insured to the extent
of its interest:

Initials   
    _______

|             |

FA 11



    
            1.   Comprehensive blanket general liability insurance including product liability insurance, to be
maintained against claims for personal injury, death or property damage suffered by others upon, in or about the
premises or occurring as a result of the maintenance or operation of any automobiles or other vehicles, owned,
hired and non-owned, or as a result of the use of any equipment used or products sold by it or services rendered by
it or any claims arising out of the Business pursuant to this Agreement or the operation of a Preppy Pet pet care
service with a single bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000, per occurrence and
$2,000,000 in the aggregate;
    
           2.   Coverage for Fire vandalism, theft, burglary liability with limits of not less than ninety percent
(90%) of the replacement value of Franchisee’s leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and
inventory;

            3.   Workers' compensation insurance coverage (when required) offering Benefits per State for
requirements for injured Employees; and Employers Liability Limit of $100,000 per Injury, $500,000 Policy
Limit and $100,000 Per Employee;
    
            4.   Automobile liability for owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles with recommended limits of
at least $1,000,000 combined single limit per state Medical/Personal Injury Protection and $1,000,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist;
    
            5.   Any and all bonds required by state law.
    
        Prior to the opening of the franchise business, Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor certificates or
policies evidencing that such insurance is in full force and effect, and each year during the term of this
Agreement, upon Franchisor's request, Franchisee shall furnish to Franchisor premium receipts or other
satisfactory evidence that such policies have continued in effect. Should Franchisee fail to maintain the required
insurance, or furnish proof thereof, the Franchisor has the option to obtain such insurance for the Franchisee at the
sole cost of the Franchisee. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of any and all claims under said policies
of insurance against Franchisee, Franchisor and/or employees or agents of either.

    J.  Taxes, Payments and Compliance with Law.
    
            (i)  Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes and assessments in connection with Franchisee's
business, its premises, and equipment; shall cause to be immediately discharged all liens or encumbrances of
every kind or character created or placed upon or against any of said property other than in the normal course of
business; and shall pay when due all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind incurred by Franchisee in the
conduct of said Franchise. Franchisee is not obligated to make payments hereunder if Franchisee is legitimately
contesting such taxes, assessments, liens, encumbrances, accounts or indebtedness; however, Franchisee shall
promptly pay such items once they do become finally uncontested and determined.

            (ii) Franchisee shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, and shall
obtain and maintain on a timely basis any and all permits, certificates, bonds, or licenses necessary for the full and
proper conduct of its franchise. This shall include, but not be limited to, any business, or other licenses required by
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the laws of any applicable jurisdiction. 

    K.  Maintenance, Repairs, and Refurbishment
    
            (i) Franchisee must maintain the interior and exterior of Franchisee’s Preppy Pet premises, equipment,
fixtures, signs and furnishings in conformity with the then current standards for each as described in the
Operations Manuals and Franchisee must make repairs and replacements as may be required by Franchisor. All
such repairs and changes must be commenced by Franchisee within sixty (60) days after notice from Franchisor
and proceed with due diligence until complete.

In addition, Franchisee must agree:

a. to keep Franchisee’s boarding facility in a high degree of safety, sanitation, repair, order and
condition, including, without limitation, such periodic repainting of the exterior and interior of the business, and
perform such maintenance and repairs to all fixtures, furnishings, signs and equipment as Franchisor may
reasonably request;

b. to meet and maintain at all times at least the minimum governmental standards and ratings
applicable to the operation of the pet care business;

c. to cause Franchisee’s employees to wear apparel which conforms to the specifications, design, color
and style approved by Franchisor from time to time; and

d. To assure that all vehicles used in the course of business shall be in good repair, shall at least meet
minimum governmental standards for safety if owned or leased by Franchisee, and shall be operated solely by
persons who are properly licensed to operate such vehicles, and who shall obey all traffic laws and otherwise
operate such vehicles in a safe manner.

(ii)  Franchisee must refurbish the pet care facility in order to maintain a modern, safe, sanitary and
uniform image throughout Franchisee’s Preppy Pet care services facility. After Franchisee’s business has been
open for five years, and on each five year anniversary thereafter, Franchisee must remodel or refurbish its facility,
equipment, decor, signage, and furnishings and bring said unit into compliance with then current standards for
new units. Franchisee must complete such remodeling, repairs, replacements and redecoration within four months
from the date refurbishment notice is forwarded to Franchisee by Franchisor. If Franchisee fails to meet this
deadline, Franchisor has the right to engage contractors or vendors to make these changes and bill Franchisee for
the work plus a fifteen percent (15%) management fee for overseeing the process.

    L.  Lease Assignment.
    
            (i) Upon the expiration or the termination of this Franchise Agreement for any reason, Franchisor shall
have the right to grant, sell, or assign a franchise or operate a pet care services business itself directly (or through
an affiliate) at said location or any place else within the protected territory imposed in Addendum A of this
Agreement.
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            (ii) Should Franchisee cease to operate its business under the Preppy Pet name, or abandons or gives
up the Franchise granted under this Agreement, or in the event the Franchise is terminated by Franchisor,
Franchisee hereby grants to Franchisor the option (but not the obligation) to take over the lease or rental of the
property occupied by the business without compensation to Franchisee.

 
           (iii) Any lease entered into by Franchisee for a site to operate its pet care services business must
contain provisions which provide that the landlord agrees to furnish Franchisor with any and all written notices of
default concurrently with the giving of such notice to Franchisee and that Franchisor shall have the right (but not
the obligation) to cure any said default according to the terms of the lease, and that the lease may be assigned to
Franchisor or its designee and that landlord will consent to such assignment without imposing any assignment or
transfer fee upon terminations of this agreement or any a breach of the lease by the Franchisee.
  

M.  Management Information Systems.

Franchisee shall install, update, maintain, pay for, and use exclusively for all operations in the Franchise
Business those information and management systems specified from time to time by Franchisor.  Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor owns any and all client lists and their contents that Franchisee may
develop during the normal course of operating the Franchised Business. Franchisee promises to keep an up-to-
date list of all active and inactive clients in the Management Software Solution, including each client’s name,
telephone number, email address, complete postal mailing address, frequency of service, last date serviced and
price of pet care services contract. The Franchisor has the right to utilize software that allows the Franchisor
continuously and without limitation to download the client list. However, from time to time Franchisor may
request, and Franchisee agrees to make available to Franchisor, within 3 business days, and upon request, an
electronic copy, or in a form approved by Franchisor, a copy of the complete database, including a complete list of
active and inactive clients (from the prior three years), including their name, telephone number, email address,
complete postal mailing address, frequency of service, last date serviced, and price of service, and other
information concerning the clients as requested, which Franchisor may access without limitation. Franchisee
promises not to use any client list for any purpose other than in the normal operation of the Franchised Business
without prior written approval of Franchisor, and Franchisee may not sell that list or any information regarding
clients to any third party without the express prior consent of the Franchisor. Franchisor agrees to not make the
client list available to any third or related party, except only those agents of Franchisor acting in an audit capacity
as provided for in Section 5H of this Agreement. Franchisee’s database is considered to be jointly owned by
Franchisee and Franchisor during the term of this Agreement but becomes solely owned by Franchisor upon the
termination or expiration of said Agreement. Franchisor reserves the right to communicate with people on the
client list.

N.  Information Security.

Franchisee must implement all administrative, physical and technical safeguards necessary to protect any
information that can be used to identify an individual, including names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail
addresses, employee identification numbers, signatures, passwords, financial information, credit card information,
government-issued identification numbers and credit report information (“Personal Information”) in accordance
with applicable law and industry best practices. It is entirely Franchisee’s responsibility (even if Franchisor
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provides Franchisee assistance or guidance in that regard) to confirm that the safeguards Franchisee uses to
protect Personal Information comply with all applicable laws and industry best practices related to the collection,
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Personal Information. If Franchisee becomes aware of a suspected
or actual breach of security or unauthorized access involving Personal Information, Franchisee will notify
Franchisor immediately and specify the extent to which Personal Information was compromised and disclosed.
Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold the Franchisor harmless from any claims arising from the breach of
security or unauthorized access involving Personal Information of the Franchisee.

O.  Public Notification.

In all advertising displays and materials distributed off site and at the Franchisee’s business, Franchisee
shall, in such form and manner as may be specified in the Confidential Operations Manual, notify the public that
Franchisee independently owns and operates the Franchise Business, and that Franchisee is operating the business
licensed hereunder as a franchisee of Franchisor, as an independent contractor, and not as an agent, representative
or employee of Franchisor, and shall identify its business location in the manner specified in the Confidential
Operations Manual. Franchisee shall otherwise take such action as may be necessary to hold itself out to the
public as an independent contractor. Further, at the request of Franchisor, the Franchisee shall display, or
otherwise make available literature provided by Franchisor relating to the availability of Preppy Pet franchises as
supplied by Franchisor and at such location(s) as directed by the Franchisor from time to time.

P.  Telephone Number and Related Items.

Franchisee shall execute and deliver to Franchisor a form of assignment of telephone numbers and
listings required by the applicable local or other telephone company(s) or such other form of assignment as
Franchisor shall prescribe (the “Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings”) prior to the commencement of
use of such number(s). See Addendum H. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the telephone company and
all listing services may accept this Agreement or the Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings as
conclusive evidence of Franchisor’s exclusive right in such telephone numbers and listings and its authority to
direct their transfer. Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all fees, charges and costs attributable to the
Telephone Numbers and Listings until such time, if any, as Franchisor effectuates the Assignment of Telephone
Numbers and Listings pursuant to Franchisee’s Post Term Obligations.

Franchisee shall immediately notify the telephone company providing service to the Franchisee and all
telephone and internet directory publishers of the termination or expiration of Franchisee’s right to use any
telephone number and any regular, classified or other directory listings associated with any Mark, and to authorize
transfer thereof to Franchisor at its direction. Franchisee acknowledges that, as between it and Franchisor,
Franchisor has the sole rights to and interest in all telephone numbers and directory and internet listings associated
with the Mark. Franchisee authorizes Franchisor, and hereby appoints Franchisor and any of its officers as
Franchisee’s attorney in fact, to direct the telephone company providing service to the Franchisee and all
telephone directory publishers to transfer any telephone numbers and directory listings to Franchisor at its
direction, should Franchisee fail or refuse to do so. The telephone company providing such service and all
telephone and internet directory publishers may accept such direction or this Agreement as conclusive proof of
Franchisor’s exclusive rights in such telephone numbers and directory and internet listings and Franchisor’s
authority to direct their transfer.
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Franchisee shall not authorize or allow calls made to the above referenced telephone numbers to be
transferred or redirected to any other number, or directory inquiries regarding numbers of the Franchise Business
to be referred to any other Business.
    
6.  FEES
    
    In addition to fees specified in other sections of this Agreement, the Franchisee shall be
 responsible for the payment of the following fees, under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth:

        A.  Royalty Fee.
        
              Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a Royalty Fee, equal to Six and One-Half Percent (6.5%) of the Total
Gross Receipts derived from the franchised business. 

    (i) Commencing on the first anniversary or Franchisee’s business’ opening, there will be a minimum
monthly Royalty due of five hundred dollars ($500), regardless of the amount of total gross receipts collected for
the period. If the average monthly Royalty paid during the preceding six (6) months exceeds the minimum
Royalty due by 10% or more, no minimum will be imposed for the current month, regardless of the total gross
receipts during the current month. 

              The term "total gross receipts" shall mean the total amount of all revenues paid to the Franchisee, its
agents and its employees, from the sale of all products or services under the Preppy Pet mark, and from any other
sources of revenue derived from the operation of the franchised business. If a payment or fee is received in the
form of merchandise or services, the fair market value of the merchandise or services shall be used in determining
the Royalty Fee, and payment shall be made to Franchisor in cash accordingly. The term "Total Gross Receipts"
shall exclude any sales taxes that may be levied or any amounts due from customers that are uncollectable.
             
             (ii) Payment of the Royalty Fee shall be made to the Franchisor monthly by the tenth day of the  month
following the month in which the revenues were received. Franchisee shall make arrangements with its banking
institution to permit Franchisor to debit Franchisee’s banking account based on Franchise’s monthly Royalty
Report (a summary of revenues collected) that shall be submitted electronically, by email or fax, as specified from
time to time by Franchisor. Franchisee may elect to authorize Franchisor to charge a credit card account for
monthly Royalty Fees, with Franchisee agreeing to pay additional processing charges.

           (iii) In the event Franchisee fails to pay any Royalty Fee within seven (7) days after it is due, then
Franchisee shall pay a late fee of $50 plus interest on the amount due at the lesser rate of one and one-half percent
(1½%) per month or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law for each month that said amount is not paid,
but in no event shall Franchisee be compelled to pay interest or fees at a rate greater than the maximum permitted
by applicable law.

    (iv) In the event Franchisee fails to submit Royalty Reports in a timely manner to permit Franchisor to
debit Franchisee’s bank accounts for the proper fee, Franchisor will have the right to estimate the amount due and
debit Franchisee’s account for that amount, making adjustments in subsequent debits to correct any inaccuracy.
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Franchisor shall be entitled, but not required, to base estimated Royalties on the average of the three preceding
month’s Royalty payments.
    

B.  Advertising Fee

   The Franchisor reserves the right to require the Franchisee to pay up to two (2%) percent of total gross
sales of the Franchise into an Advertising Fund that will be used to promote the Preppy Pet name in the
marketplace, with the exact amount to be specified by the Franchisor. Franchisor agrees not to collect Advertising
Fees until a minimum of twenty-five (25) Franchises are open for business and Franchisor will give 90 days
written notice before implementation and collection of fees. If seventy-five percent (75%) of all the existing
Franchisees (when at least 10 exist) agree that the collection of Advertising Fees and institution of the Advertising
Fund should commence earlier, Franchisor will give 90 day written notice and begin collection of such funds
upon the stated commencement date. When instituted, the Franchisee shall pay the amount due monthly, by the
tenth of the following month, paid in the same manner as the royalties. The Franchisor will spend these monies on
national, regional, or local media, or to develop advertising media for use in local markets or other marketing
techniques or programs designed to promote the sales of Preppy Pet Franchisees’ products and services to the
public. These funds may also be expended by Preppy Pet for market research and development, test or target
marketing, the conducting of surveys, creative and production costs, reimbursement to Preppy Pet for reasonable
accounting, administrative, and legal expenses associated with the Advertising Fund, or for other purposes
deemed appropriate to enhance, promote and defend the Franchisor's trademarks. Franchisor will make available
to Franchisee annual reports of payments made from the Advertising Fund and will solicit commentary regarding
future expenditures. The Franchisor’s staff will manage the Ad Fund whose sole duty will be to budget and spend
monies in the Advertising Fund in ways that it deems appropriate after receiving guidance from a Committee of
Franchise Owners. Franchisor will not co-mingle Advertising Funds with other funds or accounts. 

At such time, if ever, that an Advertising Fund is implemented, Franchisor’s affiliate Preppy Pet, Inc. will
contribute two percent (2%) (or any lower system-wide percentage rate which is identical to that paid by
franchisees) of its Preppy Pet operating units’ total gross sales to the Advertising Fund.

The Franchisee also agrees to advertise in its local marketplace, using the Franchisor's Service Mark and
Logo, and using advertising copy approved by the Franchisor. The Franchisee agrees to spend at least five percent
(5%) of monthly sales on such local advertising (or a total of 5% minus any amount being collected for the
Advertising Fund). The Franchisee agrees to make reports as the Franchisor may require to verify such
expenditures within 15 days from the end of each month for the preceding month. 
7.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
    
        A.  It is agreed that, for all purposes, Franchisee shall be considered an independent contractor, and not an
employee, agent, legal representative, joint venturer, partner or servant of Franchisor. Franchisee shall not make
any contract, agreement, warranty, or representation on behalf of Franchisor nor as Preppy Pet, nor bind
Franchisor to any obligation, nor hold itself out as an agent of Franchisor and shall effectively communicate to
third parties, Franchisee's individual, corporate or business name and status, in addition to the fact that Franchisee
is a licensee of Franchisor.
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       B.  Franchisee and Franchisor agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from and against any and
all costs, damages, expenses (including attorneys' fees) and claims arising directly or indirectly from or as a result
of, or in connection with the acts or omissions of the other. The Franchisee indemnifies the Franchisor from any
actions arising from the franchised business unless arising from the Franchisor’s gross negligence or intentional
wrongdoing. 
  
8.  TERM
    
        A.  This Agreement shall be effective and binding from the date of its execution. The term of this
franchise shall expire fifteen (15) years from such date.
    
        B.  At the end of said term, Franchisee may renew this Agreement for additional fifteen (15) year terms
so long as the following conditions are satisfied:
            
            1.   Franchisee has complied substantially with its obligations hereunder during the term and is then in
compliance with such obligations at time of giving notice and at time of renewal;
    
             2.   Franchisee has given Franchisor written notice of its election to renew at least ninety (90) but not
more than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to expiration of the initial term;
    
           3.   The Franchisee signs the new Franchise Agreement then in effect, such other companion
agreements as the Franchisor then requires of all Franchisees and the Franchisee signs a general release of the
Franchisor from all claims;
                 
            4.   A renewal fee of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) of the Initial Franchise Fee being charged new
franchisees for a comparable territory at the time of the renewal shall be paid to the Franchisor at least 30 days
before expiration of this agreement. No new initial franchise fee will be charged to Franchisee upon such renewal
or renewals.

    Upon renewal and execution of a new Franchise Agreement, royalties, advertising fees or other fees and
charges will be based on the then current charges of the Franchisor under Franchise Agreements then being
granted. Franchisor is not restricted in its right to change other significant provisions of the previously existing
Franchise Agreement, other agreements or documents.   

9.  TERMINATION AND DEFAULT
    
       A.  Franchisee may not terminate this Agreement during its term but may decline to renew the Agreement at
the end of any 15 year term.

B.  Franchisor has the right to cancel, terminate, or refuse to renew this Agreement for the following reasons
(in addition to other rights and remedies it may have) without any refund of any portion of the Franchise Fee:     
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            1.   If Franchisee fails, refuses, or neglects promptly to pay to Franchisor any money owing to
Franchisor on the date due. 
                 
             2.   If Franchisee fails to submit required reports or financial data in a timely manner.
    
             3.   If Franchisee defaults in the performance under this Franchise Agreement, a loan, open account
billing, contract assignment, or under any other Agreement with, or obligation to, Franchisor, or if Franchisee fails
to comply with guidelines, policies and requirements imposed upon it by this Agreement, by the Operations
Manual, or by such other operational memoranda issued by Franchisor;

            4.   If Franchisee violates or fails to comply with any applicable law including state business licensing
or bonding laws and fails to cure within the time allowed by law.

             5.   If Franchisee fails to maintain generally accepted good business practices which will reflect
favorably on the Franchisee, Franchisor and its marks. This includes, but is not limited to: prompt response to
clients’, consumers' or Franchisor's inquiry, by mail, or telephone and payment of liabilities, fees, and debts of the
Franchisee.
    
            6.   If the business of Franchisee is assigned, transferred, sold, leased, or for any other reason passes
from the actual supervision or control of Franchisee without Franchisor's written consent including any transfer,
sale, assignment, exchange or any other disposition of shares (or series of such transactions) of a corporate or
limited liability company-owned franchise.

            7.   If Franchisee fails to operate the business continuously for a period of more than fourteen (14)
consecutive days during the term of this Franchise Agreement or fails to begin offering pet care services and
products within 180 days of signing this Agreement.
    
            8.   If Franchisee fails to personally complete or have its designated General Manager complete, the
initial training described in Paragraph 4A(i) within 30 days of hire or engagement.

             9.   If Franchisee makes, or has made, any materially false statement or report to the Franchisor in
connection with this Franchise Agreement or application therefor or in reporting Franchisee's revenues and
resultant royalties.

            10.   If Franchisee fails to obtain from its managers, signed, written statements, in which these
employees agree to keep secret Franchisor's trade secrets and proprietary information for operation of a Preppy Pet
business or if Franchisee delivers to, or permits unauthorized persons access to the Franchisor's confidential
manuals, training programs, or any other confidential materials, or trains any other person to use Franchisor's
methods for conduct of a similar business.
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            11.   If Franchisee engages in the marketing, sale, and delivery of various pet boarding services or
products, or offers other similar products or services under any other trade name, or business name, or in any
geographical area other than that authorized by this franchise agreement, or any subsequent written authorization,
or operates the franchised business at a location other than that approved by the Franchisor; sells unauthorized
products or services under the Preppy Pet name; or otherwise violates Paragraph 15.
            
          12.   (a) If Franchisee shall be adjudicated a bankrupt (unless restricted by the United States Bankruptcy
Code) or becomes insolvent; (b) if a receiver of its property, or any part thereof, is appointed by a court of
competent authority; © if Franchisee makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (d) if a final
judgment against Franchisee remains unsatisfied of record for sixty (60) days or longer (unless a supersedeas bond
is filed); (e) if execution is levied against Franchisee's business or property, or suit to foreclose any lien or
mortgage is instituted and not dismissed within sixty (60) days; (f) if Franchisee's bank accounts, property or
receivables are attached or garnisheed and such attachment or garnishment proceedings are not dismissed within a
sixty (60) day period; or (g) if Franchisee is convicted of a felony.

   13.   If Franchisee breaches any of the terms of this Agreement two or more times within any twelve
(12) month period, even if cured.
             
        With respect to the grounds for termination set forth above in subparagraph (1) and (2), Franchisor will
deliver to Franchisee written notice of default at least seven (7) days prior to the date of termination; during this
seven (7) day period, Franchisee will have the right to cure the default.
    
        With respect to the grounds for termination set forth above in subparagraphs (3), (4), (5), and (10),
Franchisor will deliver to Franchisee written notice of default at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of
termination; during this thirty (30) day period, Franchisee will have the right to cure the default.
    
        With respect to the grounds for termination set forth above in subparagraphs (6), (7), (8), (9), (11), (12)
and (13), Franchisor will deliver notice of default, and the Franchise Agreement will terminate immediately with
no right to cure.
    
        Where notice of default and demand for performance is given, when and to the extent required, such
notice or demand shall not be a waiver of any other term hereof. To the extent that any provisions of this
Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those provided by any applicable law, or provide for
termination, cancellation or non-renewal other than in accordance with such applicable law, then such provisions
hereof shall be modified to the extent necessary to comply with the provisions of such applicable law.

10.  RIGHTS AND DUTIES UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION
    
        A.  Upon the termination of this Agreement and this franchise, or upon their expiration, Franchisee and
franchise owner(s), as applicable, shall:
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            1.   Promptly pay to Franchisor (its subsidiaries and affiliates), all sums of money, royalties, fees or
other charges due or which are undisputed and have accrued to the date of termination or expiration, as
applicable;

            2.   Cease to use, in any manner whatsoever, the Franchisor's name, the proprietary marks, manuals,
catalogs, slogans, signs, forms, devices and other materials, used in connection with the operation of the
franchise, and take all necessary steps to disassociate itself from Franchisor, including removal of signs, internet
postings, and non-use of letterheads. Franchisee shall not represent or advertise that Franchisor and Franchisee
were formerly affiliated with the Franchise System;

             3.   Immediately return to Franchisor with no demand for compensation, all operations manuals, forms,
signs, prospect and customer lists, as well as any other materials provided to Franchisee by Franchisor, its
subsidiaries or affiliates; (Franchisor will repay Franchisee for signs or other materials paid for by Franchisee that
were purchased from the Franchisor, that are returned in a salable condition, or their value may be credited to any
unpaid obligations of the Franchisee);

            4.   Take whatever action is necessary to cancel, terminate and/or change any assumed name
registration, document, or other record which contains the name "Preppy Pet" (or any form or part thereof) or any
Proprietary Mark of Franchisor;
    
           5.   Agree not to disclose any trade secrets or confidential information of Franchisor, its subsidiaries
and affiliates;
    
            6.   Immediately cease operation of the terminated or expired franchised business; 

            7.   Notify all telephone companies, of the termination of this agreement and request that
all telephone numbers, that have been used to identify the Franchisee as a licensee of Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc,
be assigned to the Franchisor or terminated (at the Franchisor's discretion) no later than 7 days after the date of
termination or expiration. The phone line(s) should be placed on intercept with no call forwarding unless the
Franchisor chooses to accept financial responsibility for the line(s). This agreement to transfer or terminate phone
line(s) applies to all telephone numbers whether commercial, residential, cellular, internet-based or other forms of
telecommunications. (See Addendum H: Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings);
   
            8.   Submit to the Franchisor a list containing the names, addresses, telephone numbers
and the name of the contact person responsible for purchasing Franchisee’s services and products for each
customer that has made a purchase during the prior 18 months; 

         9.  Promptly notify all customers of the termination of this agreement and notify said customers of the
existence of other Franchisees of the Franchisor within the same Metropolitan Area, if any exist. In addition,
Franchisee must refund to all customers any monies collected for products or services that have not been earned as
the result of this termination or expiration and the resulting inability of Franchisee to deliver said products and
provide services under the Preppy Pet Mark.

        10.   Notify any and all Internet Service Providers, URL Registrars, search engines, directories and other
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pertinent sources of the termination of this agreement and request that all links, referrals, registrations, and
telephone numbers, that have been used to identify the Franchisee as a licensee of Preppy Pet, be assigned to the
Franchisor or terminated (at the Franchisor's discretion) 7 days after the date of termination or expiration. Any
domain name registrations should be transferred under regulations established from time to time by ICONN or the
then current registration authority, to the Franchisor unless the Franchisor chooses not to accept financial
responsibility for these URL(s). If this is the case, said name registrations should be cancelled and any web pages
containing referrals to the Preppy Pet name or logo or reference to the  pet care services and products offered by
Franchisee terminated.

         11.   Offer Franchisor the right to take over any commercial property leases utilized by Franchisee and
to purchase for fair market value as established by an qualified independent appraiser selected by the Franchisor
any equipment, inventory or leases for equipment utilized by the business.

    If Franchisee and/or franchise owner(s), as applicable, fail or refuse to comply with this Section 10 in a
professional and expeditious manner, as well as all other obligations hereunder intended to survive termination
and expiration of this Agreement and Franchise, including but not limited to the non-disclosure, non-competition
and indemnification covenants, then Franchisee and franchise owner(s) agree to pay Franchisor for all costs and
expenses, including auditors' and attorneys' fees incurred by Franchisor in an effort to effect compliance
thereunder. All obligations of Franchisee, franchise owner(s) and Franchisor hereunder which expressly, or by
their nature, survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect
subsequent to and notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until they are satisfied in full or by their
nature expire. Franchisor shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to cure any default of the Franchisee and bill
the Franchisee for any expenses incurred in eliminating said default.
  
11. TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST
    

A.  Franchisee may not assign this Franchise Agreement nor sell the assets of the business to others
without the Franchisor’s written consent. Franchisor may refuse to consent to any assignment, sale, transfer or
bequeath by Franchisee of its rights under this Agreement, or to succession of this Agreement by will or intestacy,
to any person, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other entity unless that party  meets the then current
standards for new Franchisees and Franchisee has met the requirements of Paragraph 11B below.

B.  Prior to any inter vivos assignment or transfer, Franchisee shall fully pay and satisfy all of Franchisee's
obligations to Franchisor, and, if the transfer is to an unrelated third party, Franchisee (or transferee) shall have
fully paid to Franchisor a fee equal to Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) of the Initial Franchise Fee being charged
new franchisees for a comparable territory at the time of the transfer for the training course, supervision,
administrative, accounting, legal, and/or other Franchisor expenses incurred in connection with the transfer. In
addition, Franchisor shall have the right to review and approve the purchase agreement for compliance with
standard business practices, including, but not limited to, the debt burden of the purchaser; the transferee shall
have signed a new Franchise Agreement with the Franchisor; training arrangements must be made; and Franchisee
must sign a general release of the Franchisor from all claims. An assignment or transfer shall include without
limitation, an effective transfer of ownership of 20% or more of the ownership interest of a franchisee.
    C.  This Agreement and all of Franchisor's rights, title, duties, obligations, and interest hereunder may be
freely assigned, transferred or conveyed by Franchisor and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
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Franchisor's successors and assigns.

 D.  Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere in this Agreement, the Franchisee shall have the right, if it
is in full compliance with this Agreement, to transfer, without charge, its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to a corporation or a limited liability company in which Franchisee continuously owns one hundred
percent (100%) of the issued and outstanding shares of each class of stock or membership shares, provided that
the corporation or LLC must agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and the Franchisee
hereby agrees to remain personally liable in all respects as a guarantor of the obligations of the corporation or
LLC. Franchisee shall be in default under the terms of this Agreement if Franchisee, at any time, disposes of any
interest sufficient to reduce its ownership in the corporation to less than eighty 80% interest of any class of stock
without complying with the steps of Paragraph 11B.

E.  Franchisor retains the right to purchase the assets of Franchisee at the same price and on the same
terms as any other party. If Franchisee reaches an agreement to sell, assign or transfer this license, or the Franchise
Business itself, to another party, it must be subject to Franchisor’s rights. Franchisor will have 10 days to notify
Franchisee of its intent to exercise or waive said rights within 10 days of receiving written documentation
indicating the Franchisee’s agreement to sell. Franchisor shall have an additional 45 days to complete the
purchase, in instances where it decides to exercise its right to purchase, after it has given Franchisee its notice to
do so. 
 
12. NON-WAIVER
    
    No failure of Franchisor to exercise any rights reserved to it nor to insist upon strict compliance by
Franchisee (or franchise owner(s) as applicable) with any obligation or condition of this contract, and no custom
or practice at variance with these terms, shall constitute a waiver of Franchisor's right to demand exact
compliance with these terms. Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default by Franchisee (or franchisee
owner(s)) shall not affect or impair Franchisor's rights in respect to any subsequent default of the same or of a
different nature; nor shall any delay, waiver, forbearance, or omission of Franchisor to exercise any power or
rights arising out of any breach or default by Franchisee or franchise owner(s) of any of the terms, provisions, or
covenants, affect or impair Franchisor's rights, nor shall such constitute a waiver by Franchisor of any right or of
the right to declare any subsequent breach or default of this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of
the payments due to it shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any of its rights arising by a preceding
breach by Franchisee or franchisee owner(s) of any terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.  

13. NOTICE          

    Any notices required to be given shall be given in writing by personal delivery, or by certified or
registered mail, or by reputable commercial overnight delivery service, directed to Franchisor at Preppy Pet
Franchises, Inc., 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida 32806  or to Franchisee at Franchisee's address set
forth on the first page of this Agreement. Notice by mail shall be deemed received on the fifth business day
following the date it was deposited in the mail.

Either party hereto may change the address to which any notices to such party shall be delivered, by
written notice to the other. 
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14. LIABILITY FOR BREACH 
    
    In the event of any breach of this Agreement by either party, in addition to any other remedies the
aggrieved party may have at law or in equity, the party in breach shall pay to the aggrieved party all amounts due
and all damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and auditors' fees incurred by the
aggrieved party as a result of any such breach. 
  
15. COVENANT NOT TO DISCLOSE OR COMPETE
    
    Franchisee and any guarantors hereof acknowledge that their initial knowledge of the operation of a
Preppy Pet franchise, its products, services and methods of conducting business, is derived wholly from
information disclosed to them by Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement, the training programs, the Confidential
Operating Manuals and other means, and that such information is proprietary and confidential. 
        

    A.  So long as this Franchise Agreement is in effect, and for two (2) years thereafter, Franchisee and all
Guarantors shall maintain the absolute confidentiality of such information and shall not divulge to, or use for the
benefit of, any other person, partnership, association, trust, corporation or entity outside the Franchisor's
organization, any confidential or proprietary information of Franchisor nor any information concerning customers,
the methods of doing business (including, without limitation, promotion, pricing of services, marketing concepts
and other technical information and know-how employed by Franchisor or its franchisees in the boarding and care
of pets) which Franchisee or the guarantor may acquire by virtue of their operation under the terms of this
Agreement. Information furnished to employees, or agents of Franchisee by Franchisee shall be reasonably limited
to that information which directly relates to such employees' or agents' duties. All employees of the Franchisee
shall execute like non-disclosure and confidentiality undertakings in writing as a condition precedent to their
engagement by Franchisee.
      
            B.  So long as this Franchise Agreement is in effect, and for two years thereafter, except for the franchised
business licensed hereunder, Franchisee and guarantors expressly covenant that Franchisee and guarantors will not
engage, directly or indirectly, within a fifty (50) mile radius of the boundaries of Franchisee's Protected Territory,
whether as an owner, stockholder, partner, officer, director, or managerial employee in the business of marketing,
selling, and delivering various  pet care services or products, or engage in a business similar to that licensed
hereunder. In addition, Franchisee and Guarantors will not so engage anywhere in the United States or Canada
during the term of this Franchise Agreement or any renewals. If Franchisee and/or Guarantors do so compete
(whether by reason of the unenforceability of such covenant not to compete or otherwise), Franchisee and/or
guarantors shall pay to Franchisor, in lump sum, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, an amount equal to
the average Royalty due during each of the last twelve months times thirty-six (36). The parties expressly
acknowledge and agree that such payments shall not affect any rights or remedies the Franchisor may have, at law
or in equity, including without limitation the right to seek injunctive relief, against Franchisee and/or the franchise
owners by reason of such competition by them. 
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            C.  This Covenant is entered into by and between the parties hereto with full knowledge of its nature and
extent. They hereby acknowledge that the Franchise Agreement would not be entered into by the Franchisor
except upon the condition that such restrictive covenant be embodied herein and that, as such, they be enforceable,
in the event of a breach by Franchisee and/or the franchise owners, by injunctive relief, and/or any other remedies
available at law or equity to Franchisor, which remedies shall be cumulative. Franchisee and the franchise owners
expressly acknowledge and represent that, prior to entering into this Agreement, they were employed and earned a
living in some occupation other than that contemplated by this Agreement, and would not be prevented or
prohibited from being employed and earning a living upon the termination of this Agreement, whether voluntarily
or involuntarily, in the event they were prohibited from engaging in the business of selling and delivering  pet care
services and products.

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
    

This Agreement and the documents to which reference in it has been made, shall be construed together
and constitute the entire, full and complete agreement between the parties and shall supersede all prior
agreements, no other representation having induced Franchisee and franchise owner(s), as applicable, to execute
this Agreement. There are no representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, oral or otherwise, between
the parties not embodied herein, which are of any force or effect. No amendment, change or variance from this
Agreement shall be binding on any party unless executed in writing. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
waive or release Franchisor’s liability with respect to representations made in Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure
Document.
     
17. SEVERABILITY
    
    Each paragraph, section, part, term and/or provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable, and
if, for any reason, any paragraph, section, part, term and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and
contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation, such shall not impair the operation of or
affect the remaining paragraphs, sections, parts, terms, and/or provisions of this Agreement, and the latter will
continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties. Said invalid paragraphs, sections, parts, terms
and/or provisions shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement, provided, however, that if Franchisor
determines that said finding of illegality adversely affects the basic consideration of this Agreement, Franchisor
may, at its option, terminate this Agreement.

18. MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION
  
    A.  Any controversy or claim (other than those arising from non-payment of monies due, falsification of
reports, abandonment, those regarding trademark infringement, and non-compete provisions) arising out of or
relating to this contract, or the breach thereof, shall be subject to mandatory non-binding Mediation. The Mediator
will be appointed in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the American Arbitration Association unless
the parties agree on a Mediator in writing within ten (10) days after either party gives written notice of Mediation.
If either party alleges a dispute or controversy against the other party for any reason, except for those specified
above, then either party will have the right to demand non-binding Mediation within the (10) days after the
complaining party provided the other party with written notice describing the dispute or controversy and the
desired action. All Mediation hearings will take place exclusively in Orlando, Florida, and will be held within
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twenty (20) days after the Mediator has been appointed. The Mediation hearing will be informal and the Mediator
will have the right to hear and review all testimony and evidence presented by either party. The cost of the
Mediator will be shared equally by the parties. The parties agree that they will act in good faith to settle any
dispute or controversy between them either prior to or during Mediation. All matters, testimony, arguments,
evidence, allegations, documents and memorandums will be confidential in all respects and will not be disclosed
to any other person or entity by either party.

The Franchisor and the Franchisee will not have the right to commence any Arbitration or legal
proceedings against the other party until the dispute or controversy has been mediated as provided for herein,
unless said dispute is of a nature excluded from Mediation as set forth above or if neither party has requested
mediation. Both parties will have the right to take all actions necessary to demand Arbitration or to commence
legal proceedings prior to any Mediation hearing; however, neither party will have the right to an arbitration
hearing or to prosecute any legal proceedings beyond commencement of an action until the Mediation has
concluded.

B.  Any controversy or claim (other than those arising from non-payment of monies due, falsification of
reports, abandonment, those regarding trademark infringement, and non-compete provisions) arising out of or
relating to this contract, or the breach thereof, not resolved through Mediation, shall be resolved by Arbitration in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Said Arbitration
shall take place at Orlando, Florida. Judgment entered upon an award rendered by the Arbitrator may be entered in
any court having jurisdiction thereof. The parties agree that they shall be entitled to take discovery by way of
depositions and requests for production of documents and that AAA-issued subpoenas shall suffice for
compelling same. Each party shall determine the extent of the discovery it desires to undertake and shall submit to
the arbitrator (and serve on the opposing party) a schedule of such intended discovery. Each party shall be entitled
to take discovery pursuant to its schedule unless objection thereto is made by the other party within 10 days after
service of said schedule. The parties shall make a good faith attempt to resolve all objections. Any unresolved
objections shall be submitted to the arbitrator for resolution.

C.  Nothing herein shall bar the right of either party to obtain injunctive relief against threatened or actual
conduct under the usual rules of equity, including the applicable rules for obtaining preliminary injunctions. 

19. FRANCHISEE
    
    The term "Franchisee" shall be deemed to include all persons who succeed to the interest of the original
Franchisee by transfer or operation of law.      
  
20. VENUE/GOVERNING LAW
    
    This Agreement was entered into in the State of Florida and this Agreement, and all disputes between the
parties hereto, shall be interpreted and construed under its laws. The parties agree that any action in which
Franchisor is a party brought by any party against another party in connection with any disputes, rights or
obligations arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted in a state court of competent jurisdiction with venue
only in Orange County, State of Florida, or in the United States District Court for the Central District of Florida,
Orlando Division except and only to the extent prohibited by applicable law. Any party to this Agreement named
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as a defendant in such an action brought in connection with this Agreement in any other court outside of the
above-designated county or district shall have the right to have the venue of said action changed to the
above-designated county or federal district, unless precluded by applicable law. Franchisee hereby agrees to
submit personally to the jurisdiction of a court of competent subject matter jurisdiction located in the
above-designated state and county or federal district, except in any legal proceeding where Franchisor is not a
party.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is executed in and that a material portion of Franchisor's
obligations under this Agreement are to be performed in, the above-designated state and county and federal
district.

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent or prohibit Franchisor from seeking an injunction or
other equitable relief in any court of competent jurisdiction.

       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly executed,
sealed and delivered this Agreement in duplicate the day and year first above written.
    
            Witnesses:                              PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC.
                                                    (FRANCHISOR)
    
_____________________________________    By___________________________________
                                                       Duly Authorized
 
_____________________________________       ____________________________________
                                                    Franchisee (Seal)
    
_____________________________________       ____________________________________  

Printed Name

_____________________________________       ____________________________________     
Franchisee (Seal)    

____________________________________
Printed Name

Initials   
    _______

|             |

FA 27



ADDENDUM A TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FRANCHISEE’S PROTECTED TERRITORY

Franchisee is authorized to open and operate only one pet care services facility offering pet daycare 

and boarding services under the Preppy Pet mark at a location to be determined within the Designated 

Area known as____________________________ which is defined as lying within these boundaries: 

(See map attached.)

Franchisee agrees to only provide Preppy Pet services from its single location that will be identified and
deemed approved with the issuance of Addendum C to this Agreement.

            Witnesses:                                  PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC.
                                                    (FRANCHISOR)
    
_____________________________________    By___________________________________
                                                       Duly Authorized
 
_____________________________________       ____________________________________
                                                    Franchisee (Seal)
    
_____________________________________       ____________________________________  

Printed Name

_____________________________________       ____________________________________     
Franchisee (Seal)    

         ____________________________________
Printed Name
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ADDENDUM B TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
    CLOSING ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
  
      In order to ensure that your decision to purchase a Franchise from Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. (Franchisor) is based upon
your own independent investigation and judgment, please complete and sign this Acknowledgment.
    
         1.   I (we) have not received any information, either oral or written, regarding the sales, revenues, earnings, income or
profits of Preppy Pet Franchisees from any officer, employee, agent or sales representative of Franchisor that is not
contained in Item 19 of the company’s Franchise Disclosure Document.
         
         2.   I (we) have not received any assurances, promises or predictions of how well my (our) Preppy Pet franchise will
perform financially from any officer, employee, agent or sales representative of Franchisor.
         
         3.   I (we) have made my (our) own independent determination that I have adequate working capital to develop, open
and operate my (our) Preppy Pet franchise.
         
         4.   I (we) acknowledge that Franchisor will use reasonable efforts to assist me (us) in choosing a location for my (our)
Preppy Pet center, but I also understand that I am (we are) responsible for the final decision regarding the selection of a
suitable territory and site.
         
         5.   I (we) am not relying on any promises of Franchisor which are not contained in the Franchisor Franchise
Agreement.
         
         6.   I (we) understand that my (our) investment in a Preppy Pet Franchise contains substantial business risks and that
there is no guarantee that it will be profitable.
         
         7.   I (we) have been advised by Franchisor and its representatives to seek professional legal and financial advice in all
matters concerning the purchase of my (our) Preppy Pet Franchise.
         
         8.   I (we) acknowledge that the success of my (our) Preppy Pet franchise depends, in large part, upon my (our) ability as
an independent business person(s) and my (our) active supervision of the day-to-day operation of the business.
         
         9.   The name(s) of the person(s) with whom I (we) dealt in the purchase of my (our) Preppy Pet Franchise is 

(are) ________________________________________________________________________________________.
         

Dated:                                                                                                               
Printed Name

       
                                                                                                                                        

Signature         
                                           

                                                            
Printed Name

                                                                                                                                           
Signature                              
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ADDENDUM C TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

        Franchisee's Approved Location is hereby identified as follows:
    

Franchisee is authorized to open and operate one pet care services facility offering pet daycare and
boarding services under the Preppy Pet mark at the following specific site:

_______________________________________________________________________________________

Your Protected Territory will be known as____________________________ which is defined as lying within
these boundaries: 

(See map attached.)

Witnesses:                              PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC.
                                                    (FRANCHISOR)
    
_____________________________________           By___________________________________
                                                       Duly Authorized
 
_____________________________________       ____________________________________
                                                    Franchisee (Seal)
    
 ____________________________________  

Printed Name

_____________________________________       ____________________________________     
Franchisee (Seal)    

____________________________________
Printed Name

FA 30



ADDENDUM D TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
    

GUARANTY
  

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of the above Franchise Agreement (the
“Agreement”) by Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. (hereafter “Franchisor”), each of the undersigned individuals,
(“Guarantors”) hereby personally and unconditionally: (1) guarantees to Franchisor and its affiliates and their
successors and assigns, for the term of the Agreement and thereafter as provided in the Agreement, that           
                                                                                  (“Franchisee”) shall punctually pay and perform each and
every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement and (2) agrees personally to be bound
by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the Agreement and comply with all
sections of the Agreement, as though the undersigned were the Franchisee. 
  

Each of the undersigned waives:
  

(a) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor and its affiliates of the foregoing undertakings;
  

(b) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby
guaranteed;
  

© protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness or nonperformance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed;
  

(d) any right he may have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person as
a condition of liability; and
  

(e) any and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be entitled.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that:
  

(a) his direct and immediate liability under this guaranty shall be joint and several;
  

(b) he shall render any payment or performance required under the Agreement upon demand if
Franchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so:
  

© such liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor or its affiliates of any
remedies against Franchisee or any other person;
  

(d) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit
or other indulgence which Franchisor or its affiliates may from time to time grant to Franchisee or to any
other person, including, without limitation, the acceptance of any partial payment or performance or the
compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this guaranty, which
shall be continuing and irrevocable during the term of the Agreement.

Each of the undersigned waives all rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation
which any of the undersigned may have against Franchisee arising as a result of the undersigned’s execution
of and performance under this guaranty.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed his signature, under seal, on the
same day and year as the Agreement was executed.

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP GUARANTOR(S)
INTERESTS IN FRANCHISEE
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ADDENDUM E TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
 FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the
Franchisee concerning termination or non-renewal of a franchise. If a franchise agreement contains a
provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law still controls.

For franchisees in California, payment of initial fees is postponed until after all of franchisor’s initial
obligations are complete and franchisee is open for business.

The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of
the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California Law.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the state of Florida . This may not be
enforceable under California Law.

Neither the Franchisor, nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the Disclosure Document is
subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities
exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or
expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange.

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires the Franchisor to give the Franchisee a
disclosure document, in a form containing such information as the Commissioner may by rule or order
require prior to a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

The California Franchise Investment Law requires that a copy of all proposed agreements relating to
the sale of the franchise be delivered together with the Disclosure Document.

You must sign a general release if you transfer your franchise.  California Corporations Code 31512
voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code 31000
through 31516).  Business and Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise
Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043).

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF  FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dbo.ca.gov.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
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Illinois State Law Appendix

The conditions under which your franchise can be terminated and your rights upon non-renewal may be
affected by Illinois Law, ILCS 705/19 and 705/20.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Act is void."

The Franchise Agreement requires that a Franchisee shall be subject to the jurisdiction or venue of any
state or federal court in Florida .  These provisions may not be enforceable under Illinois law.

BY EXECUTING THIS APPENDIX, THE PARTIES HERETO MAKE THIS APPENDIX A PART
OF THE ACCOMPANYING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND INCORPORATE THIS APPENDIX
THEREIN.

Minnesota State Law Appendix

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec.
80C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90
days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise
agreement.

BY EXECUTING THIS APPENDIX, THE PARTIES HERETO MAKE THIS APPENDIX A PART
OF THE ACCOMPANYING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND INCORPORATE THIS APPENDIX
THEREIN.

FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
Registration of this franchise by New York State does not mean that New York State

recommends it or has verified the information in this Disclosure Document.

The Franchisor may, if it chooses, negotiate with you about items covered in the prospectus. However,
the Franchisor cannot use the negotiating process to prevail upon a prospective Franchisee to accept terms
which are less favorable than those set forth in this prospectus.

All references to “Disclosure Document” shall be deemed to include the term “Offering Prospectus” as
used under New York law.

Item 3 of this Offering Prospectus is supplemented with the following: “Neither the Franchisor nor any
person identified in Item 2 of this Disclosure Document has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo
contendere to a felony charge or, within the ten year period immediately preceding the application for
registration, has been convicted of a misdemeanor or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or
been held liable in a civil action by final judgment or been the subject of a material complaint or other legal
proceeding if such misdemeanor conviction or charge or civil action, complaint, or other legal proceeding
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involved violation of any franchise law, securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion,
restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property, or comparable allegations.”

Item 4 of this Offering Prospectus is supplemented with the following: “During the fifteen (15) year
period immediately preceding the date of this Offering Prospectus, neither the Franchisor nor any officer or
general partner of the Franchisor has been adjudged bankrupt or reorganized due to insolvency or been a
principal officer of any company or general partner in any partnership that was adjudged bankrupt or
reorganized due to insolvency during or within one year after the period that such officer or general partner
of the Franchisor held such position in such company or partnership, or is subject to any pending
bankruptcy or reorganization proceeding.”

Modifications that we make to our Confidential Operations Manual as permitted by the Franchise
Agreement will not impose an unreasonable economic burden on you.

Provisions of general restrictions are mentioned in the Offering Prospectus and specified in the
Franchise Agreement. These releases are limited by the following: all rights enjoyed by you and any causes
of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued under this law shall remain in force, it being the intent that the non-
waiver provisions of the General Business Law of the State of New York Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be
satisfied.

We will not make any assignment of the Franchise Agreement except to an assignee who, in our good
faith judgment, is willing and able to assume our obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

The choice of law of the Franchise Agreement should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred
upon either you or us by the General Business Law of the State of New York, Article 33.

Washington State Law Appendix

The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the franchise agreement in
your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. 
There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in the
state of Washington, or a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the
arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the
agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel.  Provisions such as
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those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act or rights
of remedies under the act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

FOR RESIDENTS OF ALL STATES LISTED IN THIS ADDENDUM
Notwithstanding Section 16 of the Franchise Agreement to the contrary, this Addendum will not be

merged with or into, or superseded by, the Franchise Agreement.  In the event of any conflict between the
Franchise Agreement and this Addendum, this Addendum will be controlling.  Except as otherwise
expressly set forth in this Agreement, no other amendments or modifications of the Franchise Agreement
are intended or made by the parties.

Applicable state or commonwealth: _________________________________

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum as of the date
of execution of the Franchise Agreement.

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC. FRANCHISEE
___________________________ _________________________
By:                            Signature

_________________________
Print name

_________________________
                            Signature

_________________________
Print name
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ADDENDUM F TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
BANK AUTHORIZATION FORM

I hereby authorize Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. to initiate debit entries to my ____ Checking 
____ Savings account indicated below at the depository named below, hereinafter called DEPOSITORY
and authorize DEPOSITORY to debit the same to such account.

DEPOSITORY (BANK) NAME:                                                                                                        

BRANCH:                                                                                                                                          

ADDRESS:                                                                                                                                         

CITY:                                                                             STATE: _______________   ZIP: __________ 

Bank/ABA #:                                                                                                      

ACCOUNT #:                                                                                                      

This is to remain in full force and effect for the entire term of the Franchise Agreement, including
renewals, unless upon ten (10) days written notice this authorization is subsequently replaced by maker.

FRANCHISEE:                                                                                                      

FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION:                                                                                                       
      (Please print or type)

SIGNED:                                                                                                       

DATE:                                                                                                       

Initials   
    _______

|             |

FA 37



ADDENDUM G TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned __________________________________, ("Tenant")
hereby assigns, transfers and sets over unto Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc, a Florida Corporation ("Preppy
Pet”) all of Tenant's right, title and interest as tenant in, to and under that certain lease, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 1 (the "Lease") respecting premises commonly known as
_________________________________________.    

      This Agreement is for collateral purposes only and except as specified herein, Preppy Pet shall have no
liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or in connection with this Assignment of the
Lease unless Preppy Pet shall take possession of the premises demised by the Lease pursuant to the terms
hereof and shall assume the obligations of Tenant thereunder after the date of such assignment.

If Preppy Pet takes possession of the premises demised by the Lease and confirms to Landlord the
assumption of the Lease by Preppy Pet or its designee as tenant thereunder, Landlord shall recognize Preppy
Pet as tenant under the Lease, and Preppy Pet, or its designee shall not be liable for prior defaults or for
obligations prior to the date of such assignment to Preppy Pet.

Tenant represents and warrants to Preppy Pet that it has full power and authority to so assign the Lease
and its interest therein and that Tenant has not previously, and is not obligated to, assign or transfer any of
its interest in the Lease or the premises demised thereby to any party other than Preppy Pet or Preppy Pet
designee.

Upon default by Tenant under the Lease or under the franchise agreement for a Preppy Pet store between
Tenant and Preppy Pet (the "Franchise Agreement"), or in the event of a default by Tenant  under any
document or instrument securing said Franchise Agreement, Preppy Pet shall have the right and is hereby
empowered to take possession of the premises demised by the Lease, expel Tenant therefrom and, in such
event, Tenant shall have no further right, title or interest in the Lease.

Tenant agrees it will not suffer or permit any surrender, termination, amendment or modification of the
Lease without the prior written consent of Preppy Pet. Through the term of the Franchise Agreement and
any renewals thereto, Tenant agrees that it shall elect and exercise all options to extend the term of or renew
the Lease not less than thirty (30) days prior to the last day that said option must be exercised, unless Preppy
Pet otherwise agrees in writing.  Upon failure of Preppy Pet to otherwise agree in writing, and upon failure
of Tenant to so elect to extend or renew the Lease as stated herein, Tenant hereby appoints Preppy Pet as its
true and lawful attorney-in-fact to exercise such extension or renewal options in the name, place and stead of
Tenant for the sole purpose of effecting such extension or renewal.
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This _______ day of ______________________, 202___

TENANT: _______________________________

By:       _______________________________

Name:       _______________________________

Title:       _______________________________
 

                                                                                      Witness:     _______________________________

FRANCHISE OWNERS:

By:        _______________________________ 

Name        _______________________________

By:       _______________________________ 

Witness    _______________________________ 

                                                       PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC

      By:    _______________________________

Name:    _______________________________

Title:    _______________________________

Witness:  _______________________________
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ADDENDUM H
ASSIGNMENT OF TELEPHONE NUMBERS AND LISTINGS

This Assignment is entered into this ______ day of _______________, 202_, in accordance with the terms
of that certain Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. Franchise Agreement (the "Franchise Agreement" between
______________________________ ("Franchisee") and Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. a Florida Corporation
("Franchisor"), executed concurrently with this Assignment, under which "Franchisor" granted "Franchisee"
the right to own and operate a Preppy Pet "Facility" located at
_________________________________________________  (the "Facility").

For Value Received, "Franchisee" hereby assigns to "Franchisor", all of the right, title and interest in and to
those certain telephone numbers listed below and any other telephone numbers hereafter associated with the
business, regardless of the technology used (ie: standard twisted wire, cellular, VOIP, etc.) and regular,
classified or other telephone directory listings (collectively, the "Telephone Numbers and Listings")
associated with Franchisor's  trademarks and service marks and used from time to time in connection with
the operation of the Unit at the address provided above. Except as specified herein, Franchisor shall have no
liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or in connection with this Assignment, unless
Franchisor shall notify the Telephone Company and/or the listing agencies with which Franchisee has
placed telephone directory listings (all such entities are collectively referred to herein as the Telephone
Company) to effectuate the assignment pursuant to the terms thereof.

PREPPY PET FRANCHISES, INC. FRANCHISEE:

By: By:

Name: Name: 

Title: Title:

Telephone Numbers
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ADDENDUM I SBA LOAN AGREEMENT

Initials   
    _______

|             |

FA 41



Initials   
    _______

|             |

FA 42



STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the
state, or be exempt from registration:  California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and
Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective

dates:

STATE EFFECTIVE DATE

California N/A

New York N/A

Virginia N/A
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23.  RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection
with the proposed franchise sale. Washington law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure
Document to the purchaser at least ten business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and
Should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state officials in
your state, as listed on the attached schedule of state agencies. In the states listed on the attached schedule of state
agencies, we have designated the agency listed as its agent for service of legal process in each of the states listed.

The Franchisor's registered agent in the State of Florida is Jerry Gore. The Franchisor may receive service of
process at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida 32806 and 407-420-1060.

Jerry Gore and Melanie Gore will act as franchise sellers. They are based at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando,
Florida 32806 and their contact number is 407-420-1060.

I received a disclosure document dated August 14, 2025 that included the following Exhibits: Audited Financial
Statements Dated December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024 and Unaudited Interim Financial Statements for the 6
Months Ending June 30, 2025 (Exhibit A); the Sample Non-Disclosure and Non-Compete Agreement (Exhibit B),
Schedule of State Agencies (Exhibit C), State-Specific Amendments (Exhibit D), and Franchise Agreement with
Addenda (Exhibit E).  

____________________ ________________________________________

Witness Signature of Prospect

_________________________________________

Printed Name

_________________________________________

Address

_________________________________________

City, County, State ZIP

_________________________________________

Date

(Please sign and date this page and retain for your records)



23.  RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale. Washington law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document to the
purchaser at least ten business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and Should be reported to
the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state officials in your state, as listed on
the attached schedule of state agencies. In the states listed on the attached schedule of state agencies, we have
designated the agency listed as its agent for service of legal process in each of the states listed.

The Franchisor's registered agent in the State of Florida is Jerry Gore. The Franchisor may receive service of process at
57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida 32806 and 407-420-1060.

Jerry Gore and Melanie Gore will act as franchise sellers. They are based at 57 West Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida
32806 and their contact number is 407-420-1060.

I received a disclosure document dated August 14, 2025 that included the following Exhibits: Audited Financial
Statements Dated December 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024 and Unaudited Interim Financial Statements for the 6 Months
Ending June 30, 2025 (Exhibit A); the Sample Non-Disclosure and Non-Compete Agreement (Exhibit B), Schedule of
State Agencies (Exhibit C), State-Specific Amendments (Exhibit D), and Franchise Agreement with Addenda (Exhibit
E).  

____________________ _________________________________________

Witness Signature of Prospect

_________________________________________

Printed Name

_________________________________________

Address

_________________________________________

City, County, State ZIP

_________________________________________

Date

(Please sign and date this page and return it to Preppy Pet Franchises, Inc.)
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